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Corporate Profile

Vision

Mission

The Association of Financial Institutions (AFI) is in the 
nature of a public agency and professional organization 
incorporated in accordance with the Financial Leasing, 
Factoring, and Financing Companies Law no: 6361 dated 
21 November 2012.

AFI is an umbrella organization for concerns in Turkey that 
provides

• Financial Leasing   • Factoring   • Financing 

products and services to customers who are active in the 
production, trade, sales, and consumption channels of the 
Turkish economy.

Help increase the added value that financial institutions 
contribute to the economy and thus enhance the national 
and international strength and influence of the sectors it 
represents.

Contribute to the sustainable and healthy development of 
the financial leasing, factoring, and financing sectors; 
support these sectors in their efforts to enhance their 
international competitive strength; ensure the creation and 
establishment of and adherence to professional standards 
in their respective fields.
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Chairperson’s Message

Believing in the importance and the 
power of regular communication with 
its stakeholders, the AFI continued to 
heavily work along the same line in 2019. 
Our report that we present for your 
comments and assessments cover the 
developments that took place in all the 
three sectors in 2019, the projects we 
have undersigned as AFI, the regulatory 
framework that concerns our fields of 
activities, our anticipations from the 
lawmakers, and the media coverage in 
relation to all of these headings.

2019 has been an important year 
also with respect to formulating our 
strategies that will help us achieve 
our 2020 targets, while updating our 
strategic theme made one of the year’s 
highlights for our Association. In view of 
our national economy and the growth 
potential of our sectors, our strategic 
theme has been set as digitalization. 
Accordingly, we have prioritized effective 
positioning of the products that best 

In 2019, the Association of Financial 
Institutions continued to create added 
value for represented sectors and its 
stakeholders, and kept implementing 
projects that will shape the future. 

“Offering the best possible solution 
to the SMEs”, which is the shared and 
unchanged priority of its members, 
makes the focal point of all activities 
that are carried out under the AFI roof, 
targeted at achieving the better and 
nurtured by innovative thinking. We 
charge ahead into the future in line 
with the strategies we espouse and 
apply, empowered in this journey by 
our strength arising from our structure 
as an “Association”, in addition to the 
financial expertise and knowledge that 
we possess. The plans that have been 
designed to make life easier for the SMEs 
and to provide the solutions they need by 
offering the best products and services 
are being put into life.

We charge ahead into the future in line with the strategies we 
espouse and apply, empowered in this journey by our strength 
arising from our structure as an “Association”, in addition to the 
financial expertise and knowledge that we possess.

Aynur Eke
Chairperson
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cater to our stakeholders’ evolving needs 
and expectations by our members on 
diverse service and distribution channels, 
and giving greater weight to digital 
service channels.

We continue to express on every 
platform that we, as the Association of 
Financial Institutions, are ready to do 
everything that falls upon us to support 
the financing of trade, production and 
investments, adhering to the New 
Economic Program introduced by Turkey. 
Readying the digital infrastructure of 
the sectors we represent constitutes 
the foothold of this understanding. This 
approach adopts the best practices in 
Europe as a model so as to facilitate 
financial access through digital 
transformation, and helps us concentrate 
on sectoral initiatives.

Delivering financing facilities to 
customers through digital platforms will 
not only give us countrywide reach, but 
will also pave the way for the joining of 
new players in our sectors.

Important steps towards digitalization 
have been taken in 2019.

Financial leasing, factoring and financing 
sectors covered under the roof of our 
Association continued to offer high 
added-value products and services to 
their customers amid the occasionally 
volatile and tough conditions of 2019. 
Performance results attained by each 
one of our sectors are presented in detail 
for your review in the related parts of our 
report.

At this point, I would like to outline the 
specific steps taken in our sectors with 
respect to digitalization, which we have 
identified as our strategic theme. The 
digitalization activities, which possess 
strategic and long-term importance in 
our opinion, contribute to the value all of 
the three sectors offer to customers, and 
serve to our financial inclusion target. 

Our two initiatives, namely Central 
Receivables Recording (CRR) that records 
invoices and similar documents thus 
precluding recurrent assignment and 
financing of the same trade receivable, 
which is one of the most critical duties 
imposed on the AFI by the Financial 
Leasing, Factoring and Financing 
Companies Law no. 6361, and the 
Contract Registration System where 
financial leasing contracts are registered, 
continue to function successfully, while 
also supporting registered economy.

I would also like to add that we are 
unrolling important practices that are 
products of our consultations and 
meetings with the public authorities. 
Integration work started and came to its 
final stage based on the protocol signed 
with the Ministry of Trade concerning 
integration of CRR and the Movable 
Pledge Registry System (MPRS). The 
project is slated for completion in 2020. 
The integration of CRR and MPRS will 
serve to find out any previous partial or 
total pledge or transfer, if any, of a given 
receivable. In addition, members will be 
able to connect to MPRS via CRR and 
perform pledge formalities. The Trade 

digital 
Delivering financing facilities 
to customers through digital 
platforms will not only give us 
countrywide reach, but will 
also pave the way for the 
joining of new players in our 
sectors.
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Chairperson’s Message

We are monitoring our members’ needs…

As part of the implementation of 
the requirements specified in the 
Communiqué on Management and 
Auditing of Information Systems of 
Leasing, Factoring and Financing 
Companies, which came into effect 
on 6 April 2019, work was initiated to 
create the “Shared Data Center” with a 
customized cloud architecture owned 
by AFI with the purpose of satisfying 
system infrastructure requirements of 
AFI-member companies in the fastest 
and most efficient manner, and providing 
an environment that will allow low-cost 
utilization of current technologies. The 
AFI Cloud Data Center is targeted to go 
live during 2020. We are confident that 
in the years ahead we will be seeing AFI 
in the focal point of a more digitalized 
structure within the scope of the 
strategies we have determined with the 
strength lent to us by our members. 

Our sectors, which have an important 
role with respect to financial inclusion, 
are undergoing a transformation phase 
that is focused on a digital future and 
innovation that will further strengthen 
their market presence. In line with the 
evolving consumer behavior and the 
mega trends that influence our lives, our 
sectors are taking successful steps to 
increasingly capture the advancements 
in financial technology in their business 
models, and operate in cooperation with 
fintechs.

Chain Finance System launched by AFI 
has an important role in increasing the 
fluidity of trade across Turkey. Basically 
bringing together the buyer, supplier and 
financing companies electronically, the 
Trade Chain Finance System increases 
the rate of access to financing of the 
SMEs that are accountable for 56% 
of the added value generated for the 
national economy, and enables low-cost 
funding. We believe that the system that 
covers SMEs, large-scale companies and 
financial institutions will also contribute 
to downsizing unregistered economy, as 
well.

We are confident that in the years ahead we will be seeing AFI 
in the focal point of a more digitalized structure within the 
scope of the strategies we have determined with the strength 
lent to us by our members.
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Outlook…

We have completed yet another year 
during which we, as AFI, have provided 
material support to our sectors by 
introducing major, digital-oriented 
projects to drive our sectors towards 
development. As we were preparing 
our report for publishing in the first 
quarter of 2020, the whole world was in 
the grip of the Covid-19 pandemic. It is 
obvious that this global health crisis will 
present the world and individual national 
economies with challenging equations 
that must be resolved.

In this process awaiting our sectors, the 
AFI is prepared to stand by and support 
its stakeholders with all the resources 
and capacities at its disposal. Thereafter, 
we will need to work on new, more 
aggressive targets for 2021 which will 
be a year of return to growth. We are 
convinced that there are no obstacles 
that we cannot overcome or prevail given 
the involvement and commitment of AFI 
members. Let me assure you that, in all 
our actions and activities, we are guided 
by the approach summed up as “together, 
we are stronger”. 

I would like to thank you, our valuable 
members and stakeholders, and wish all 
of us health and success.

Sincerely,

Aynur Eke 
Chairperson
Association of Financial Institutions
 

for 2021 
We will need to work on new, 
more aggressive targets for 
2021 which will be a year of 
return to growth.
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Message from the Financial Leasing Sector Representatives Board

and the ratio of investment expenditures 
to GDP went below the 2018 figure. The 
ratio of total fixed capital investments 
to GDP was 27.5% in 2018 and 23.5% in 
2019.

The contraction in total fixed-capital 
investments stemmed from real estate 
investments and the ratio of movable 
property investments to GDP remained 
fixed in the order of 10%.

The stagnation in economic activity 
reflected also on investments financed 
through leasing. Private sector fixed 
investment expenditures financed 
through leasing, which amounted to 
USD 6.2 billion in 2017, were USD 4.8 
billion in 2018 and USD 2.6 billion in 
2019. At ordinary market conditions, our 
projected business volume for 2020 was 
USD 3.4 billion. However, we have revised 
this projection to USD 2.5 billion due 
to the slowdown in global and national 
economy that resulted from the Covid-19 
pandemic.

Distinguished stakeholders, 

The operations and business volumes 
of the financial leasing sector were 
substantially shaped by the economic 
developments in 2018 and 2019.

The rebalancing tendency in economic 
activity, which started in the second 
quarter of 2018, persisted in the third 
quarter before becoming pronounced 
in the fourth, and growth slowed down 
in the third quarter of 2018. While the 
economy downsized by 2.8% in the 
fourth quarter of that year, growth 
was 2.8% for the whole year in 2018. 
This weak growth outlook of the GDP 
caused 0.6% shrinkage in investment 
expenditures. The downsizing that 
started in the GDP in the last quarter of 
2018 carried on in 2019, with respective 
rates of -2.3% and -1.6% in the first and 
second quarters. GDP expanded 1% in 
the third quarter of 2019 and 6% in the 
fourth. Growth was driven by private 
consumption expenditures and exports, 

The fundamental strategies of the members of our sector 
focus on efforts to enlarge the total pie by pursuing activities 
so as to increase their share in the financing of investments.

Dr. Cüneyt Akpınar
Deputy Chairperson

Chairperson of the Financial Leasing 
Sector Representatives Board
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Having conducted its services through 
23 companies and 1,232 employees 
in 2019, the leasing sector’s total 
assets were worth TL 58.2 billion and 
its shareholders’ equity amounted to 
TL 10.4 billion, while the overall sector 
posted a net profit of TL 1.1 billion.

The Contract Registration System that 
functions publicly continues to serve as 
an element of trust.

Successfully operating for five years and 
working in integration with the Ministry 
of Finance, e-government and the Central 
Civil Registration System (in Turkish: 
MERNİS), the Financial Leasing Contract 
Registration System was established by 
the Central Registry Agency (in Turkish: 
MKK) totally electronically. Used by 
leasing companies, participation banks, 
investment banks and development 
banks, the system registers the contracts 
that are electronically signed and time 
stamped. 

In 2019, a total of 9,960 contracts were 
registered in the system.

We are confident that the stagnant 
course of the economy and investments 
will be overcome by the joining of forces 
by the economy administration and the 
sector. 

The increase in our sector’s contribution 
to investments in this particular period 
depends on the steps to be taken to 
the extent possibilities to access low-

cost funding resources are developed. 
Our sector is always ready to dedicate 
all the resources available to it to the 
sustainable development of our country. 
The fundamental strategies of the 
members of our sector focus on efforts 
to enlarge the total pie by pursuing 
activities so as to increase their share in 
the financing of investments.

As well known by all, financial leasing is 
a medium- and long-term investment 
finance instrument; it is an investment 
loan. The characteristics that define it 
as an investment loan is the guarantee 
that the repayment terms of the investor 
that has provided financing through 
leasing remains constant, irrespective of 
the severity of economic volatility. This 
characteristic tends to be overlooked 
especially when the economy is stable; 
however, the value of leasing is revealed 
more clearly amid conjunctures such as 
the extraordinary period we are going 
through.

As our sector and each and every one 
of our members continue determinedly 
to mobilize all the means they have 
to help the customers overcome the 
potential difficulties they may be faced 
with in 2020, they will be spending their 
best efforts to keep their customers 
unharmed during the Covid-19 pandemic.

Dr. Cüneyt Akpınar
Deputy Chairperson 
Association of Financial Institutions 

development 
Our sector is always ready to 
dedicate all the resources 
available to it to the 
sustainable development of 
our country.
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Message from the Factoring Sector Representatives Board

In 2019, extremely productive meetings 
were held with the public authority, 
during which the problems of the sector 
were voiced, some of our structural 
issues were resolved, while result-
oriented important steps were taken for 
some others. Along this line, we have 
underlined time and again the critical 
importance of a regulatory framework 
which paves the way for increased 
weight of non-bank finance within the 
economy for us and for our stakeholders, 
as is the case in developed economies. 
We will be increasing the frequency of 
these meetings to convey the problems 
and expectations of our sector to the 
public authority in the period ahead.

We have created new projects and 
digitalized our sector… 

We have launched important projects 
aimed at increasing the share, strength 
and penetration of the factoring sector 
in economy, and to extend the necessary 
support to the SMEs. Supporting 
recorded economy and precluding 
recurrent assignment and financing 
of the same trade receivable, the CRR, 
which was established under the AFI 
roof by the factoring sector, has been 
operating successfully since 2015. CRR, 
which was being used by 56 factoring 

Distinguished stakeholders,

Factoring continues to keep the wheels 
of trade turning… 

The need to access financing, which 
is one of the critical building blocks 
underlying economic stability in our 
country, imposes important duties on the 
factoring sector. In this period, we owned 
our mission and responsibility together 
with all our stakeholders, and we have 
taken care to stand by the national real 
sector, our exporters and SMEs. We have 
continued to produce solutions for the 
financing needs of our SMEs and we 
have actively assumed responsibility 
for keeping the wheels of trade turning 
despite all exchange rate attacks. 

The factoring sector deserves to be 
applauded for the performance it has 
displayed in spite of having a very trying 
year. With a business volume in the order 
of TL 130 billion as at year-end 2019, our 
sector’s receivables expanded by more 
than 8% to TL 34 billion. Total assets of 
the sector reached TL 37 billion and its 
shareholders’ equity TL 8 billion. These 
figures show that a challenging year 
has been left behind in 2019 thanks to 
the strong support and reflex of all our 
stakeholders.

In 2019, we have launched important projects aimed at 
increasing the share, strength and penetration of the factoring 
sector in economy, and to extend the necessary support to the 
SMEs.

Aynur Eke
Chairperson

Chairperson of the Factoring Sector 
Representatives Board
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companies and 23 banks for a total of 
79 financial institutions as at year-end 
2019, prevented 740 thousand risky 
transactions. In addition, the integration 
of CRR with the Movable Pledge Registry 
System (MPRS) will allow to determine 
whether the receivables were subject to 
prior pledge, and will increase the added 
value of the system.

The e-transformation applications 
that save labor, time and cost, enhance 
total quality, and render financial data 
electronically accessible are offered to 
enterprises with the AFI assurance. While 
e-invoice and e-archive applications 
lead the private integrator services 
launched within this framework, which 
are critical for recording the economy, we 
are extremely pleased with the growing 
demand for these applications from our 
members and businesses. Work is ongoing 
also on new projects for the progress 
and digitalization of our sector. Studies 
were initiated to create the “Shared 
Data Center” with a customized cloud 
architecture owned by AFI for the purpose 
of satisfying system infrastructure 
requirements of our member companies 
in the most efficient manner, and bringing 
cutting-edge technology to our members 
at more affordable prices. The AFI Cloud 
Data Center is targeted to be launched in 
2020. Both our Association, which serves 
as our primary umbrella organization, and 
our Trade Finance Commercial Enterprise 
spend their best efforts to integrate and 
further improve the services they offer 
to anyone adding value to the national 
economy and primarily to our SMEs 
and exporters with the opportunities 
technology offers. This vision will serve to 
launch new e-transformation initiatives 
also in the period ahead.

We are contributing to the national 
economy with the Trade Chain Finance… 

We regard the Trade Chain Finance 
System, which was introduced in 2019 
following painstaking efforts under 
the roof of AFI, as an important part 
of our digitalization vision. The Trade 
Chain Finance System is intended to 
give our SMEs, the building block of our 
national economy, centralized access 
to numerous financial instruments, and 
most importantly, to low-cost financing 
through their own trade receivables. 
Accordingly, when they need cash, 
SMEs will be able to create funds for 
themselves for their ongoing production 
by financing their trade in cash, whereas 
financial institutions will finance 
suppliers, which are mostly constituted 
by SMEs, with the confirmation of the 
buyer company that enjoy a higher 
creditworthiness as compared to their 
suppliers, thus generating a closed-
circuit workflow. Also an ecosystem that 
will become indispensable for the users 
in the long-term will result through new 
features, products and integrations to be 
added to the system.

The entire factoring sector will continue 
to work hard to make sure that factoring 
is given the value it deserves and to 
gradually increase its contribution to 
our country’s trade. I know that we will 
overcome challenges with a spirit of 
union in the future, as we did in 2019, 
and extend my gratitude to all our 
members and business stakeholders.

Aynur Eke 
Chairperson
Association of Financial Institutions 

e-transformation 
The e-transformation 
applications that save labor, 
time and cost, enhance total 
quality, and render financial 
data electronically accessible 
are offered to enterprises with 
the AFI assurance.
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Message from the Financing Companies Representatives Board

Commercial loans made up 54% of our 
portfolio.

Commercial loans made up 54% of total 
loans disbursed in 2019 by financing 
companies. 

Supporting domestic production is 
another priority mission of our sector. 
Financing companies are important 
contributors to the commercial and 
consumer financing of passenger and 
commercial vehicles manufactured. Of 
the products we provide financing to, 
55% of automotive and commercial 
vehicles are domestically produced, 
whereas this ratio is almost 100% for 
white and brown goods, furniture and 
textiles. On the other hand, our sector 
made an important contribution to 
the long-term financing of investment 
goods including trucks and heavy-duty 
machinery that constitute important 
elements of infrastructure investments 
including the mega projects realized in 
recent years in our country, among which 
there are İstanbul Airport, Yavuz Sultan 
Selim Bridge, Marmaray project, high-
speed train projects, divided highways, 
city hospitals, and tunnels.

With the financing functions performed, 
our sector plays an important role directly 
in the development of the automotive 
sector and indirectly in the development 
of the construction industry, two of the 
driving engines of the Turkish economy.

The financing sector is one of the 
cornerstones of the economic cycle.

The financing sector provides commercial 
and consumer finance for commodity and 
service purchases in numerous areas, 
primarily in automotive, commercial 
vehicles, telecommunications, consumer 
durables, education and mortgage 
sectors.

Our sector sustained a significant 
contraction because of several reasons 
including the macroeconomic volatilities, 
declined demand and restrictions 
imposed on the number of allowed 
installations following the foreign 
currency attack in the summer of 2018. 
In the light of these events, the total 
number of our customers which had 
gone up to 4.7 million dwindled by 29.8% 
in 2019 and dropped to 3.3 million.

Total assets of the financing sector also 
suffered a parallel downsizing in 2019. 
Total assets shrank by 30.6% to TL 28 
billion, whereas transaction volume 
slumped by 32.7% to TL 18 billion. 
Particularly remarkable in this period was 
the 60% shrinkage in the micro-lending 
market, resulting mainly from installment 
restrictions. In 2019, total receivables of 
the financing sector were down by 30% 
and worth TL 23 billion. 

Adem Duman
Deputy Chairperson

Chairperson of the Financing Companies 
Sector Representatives Board

With the financing functions performed, our sector plays an 
important role directly in the development of the automotive 
sector and indirectly in the development of the construction 
industry, two of the driving engines of the Turkish economy.
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Digitalization steps

Keeping a close eye on the evolving 
consumer behaviors, financing companies 
capture the advancements in the fintech 
circle to their business models.

Today, customers visit the physical sales 
outlets less frequently, research and 
compare the products and services they 
wish to purchase on the internet and 
mobile platforms, and conclude their 
transactions through remote access. 

Financing companies update their 
information technology infrastructure so 
as to make use of rating/scoring systems 
and RPA (robotic process automation) 
in operational processes and artificial 
intelligence (AI) applications at a greater 
extent. In addition, maximum importance 
is attached to developing collaborations 
with payment systems and insurance 
companies within the frame of digital 
projects.

We continue to share the policies we 
develop for driving our sector forward 
and for rendering more efficient service 
to our customers with the public 
authority via our Association.

When we look at the developments 
across the world, we see that fintechs 
and non-bank financial institutions 
undertake an important role in growing 
financial inclusion especially in emerging 
countries. With its 3.3 million customers, 
the Turkish financing sector has also 
assumed a significant part with respect 
to financial inclusion and is focused on 
further strengthening its presence.

In a market shaped by Covid-19…

In the first quarter of 2020 when this 
report was being written, the whole 
world and our country was undergoing 
a tough period due to the Covid-19 

pandemic. This period re-established the 
vitality of the introduction of the remote 
financing method with all of its involved 
processes, which financing companies 
developed in line with the vision they 
have formulated over the course of many 
years. In addition to remote financing, 
risk, liquidity and cost management and 
the need for diversification in funding 
and business models will make the other 
topics of growing importance in the 
period ahead. 

We are determined to increase our 
contribution to the national economy.

Under the new market conditions 
that will mature with the adaptation 
of identity authentication in 
distance transactions, biometric 
signature solutions, eIDAS (Electronic 
Identification, Authentication and Trust 
Service), which is the new version of 
the Turkish Electronic Signature Law no. 
5070 and espoused in Europe in 2016, 
and PSD-2 (Payment Service Directive) 
to our country, the financing sector 
will continue to act in perfect unison, 
and to carry on and further increase its 
contribution to the national economy 
in diverse areas, primarily including 
facilitation of access to financing and 
productivity. We are confident that we 
will come through 2020 with minimum 
damage thanks to proactive and effective 
measures to be adopted by our economy 
administration, coupled with the 
regulatory arrangements to be published 
in all these areas.

I would like to thank all the players of the 
financing sector and all our stakeholders 
for their invaluable contributions and 
relentless support.

Adem Duman
Deputy Chairperson
Association of Financial Institutions

fintech
Keeping a close eye on the 
evolving consumer behaviors, 
financing companies capture 
the advancements in the 
fintech circle to their business 
models.
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Board of Directors

L-R Member Company

Dr. Cüneyt Akpınar Deputy Chairperson of the Board Burgan Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.

Tijen Akdoğan Ünver Member of the Board Volkwagen Doğuş Finansman A.Ş.

Selahattin Süleymanoğlu Member of the Board Halk Faktoring A.Ş.

Mehmet Karakılıç Member of the Board İş Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.

Murat Ömürbek Member of the Board Atılım Faktoring A.Ş.

Cafer Sadık Karabüber Member of the Board Kent Faktoring A.Ş.

Y. Pınar Kitapçı Member of the Board Koç Finansman A.Ş.

T. Fatih Torun Member of the Board Yapı Kredi Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.

Özgür Öztürk Member of the Board Orfin Finansman A.Ş.

Coşkun Çabuk Member of the Board Halk Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.

Aynur Eke Chairperson of the Board Vakıf Faktoring A.Ş.

Adem Duman Deputy Chairperson of the Board Turkcell Finansman A.Ş.

Fidan Sevilmiş Member of the Board Koç Fiat Kredi Finansman A.Ş.

Nurcan Taşdelenler Member of the Board Arena Faktoring A.Ş.

Rahime Özlem Baysal 
(not present in the picture)

Member of the Board Şeker Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
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Member Companies

Financial Leasing Sector

1 A&T Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
2 Ak Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
3 Alternatif Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
4 Anadolu Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
5 Arı Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
6 BNP Paribas Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
7 Burgan Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
8 De Lage Landen Finansal 
 Kiralama A.Ş.
9 Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
10 Garanti Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
11 Haliç Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
12 Halk Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
13 ING Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
14 İş Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
15 Mercedes-Benz Finansal 
 Kiralama Türk A.Ş.
16 Pervin Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
17 QNB Finans Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
18 Siemens Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
19 Şeker Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
20 Vakıf Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
21 VFS Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
22 Yapı Kredi Finansal Kiralama A.O.
23 Yatırım Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
  
Factoring Sector

24 ABC Faktoring A.Ş.
25 Acar Faktoring A.Ş.
26 Ak Faktoring A.Ş.
27 Akdeniz Faktoring A.Ş.
28 Akın Faktoring A.Ş.
29 Anadolu Faktoring A.Ş.
30 Arena Faktoring A.Ş.
31 Atak Faktoring A.Ş.
32 Atılım Faktoring A.Ş.
33 Başer Faktoring A.Ş.
34 Bayramoğlu Faktoring A.Ş.
35 C Faktoring A.Ş.
36 Creditwest Faktoring A.Ş.
37 Çağdaş Faktoring A.Ş.

38 Çözüm Faktoring A.Ş.
39 Deniz Faktoring A.Ş.
40 Destek Faktoring A.Ş.
41 Devir Faktoring A.Ş.
42 Doğa Faktoring A.Ş.
43 Doruk Faktoring A.Ş.
44 Eko Faktoring A.Ş.
45 Ekspo Faktoring A.Ş.
46 Fiba Faktoring A.Ş.
47 Garanti Faktoring A.Ş.
48 Global Faktoring Hizmetleri A.Ş.
49 GSD Faktoring A.Ş.
50 Halk Faktoring A.Ş.
51 Huzur Faktoring A.Ş.
52 ING Faktoring A.Ş.
53 İstanbul Faktoring A.Ş.
54 İş Faktoring A.Ş.
55 Kapital Faktoring A.Ş.
56 Kent Faktoring A.Ş.
57 Kredi Finans Faktoring 
 Hizmetleri A.Ş.
58 Lider Faktoring A.Ş.
59 Mert Finans Faktoring A.Ş.
60 MNG Faktoring A.Ş.
61 Optima Faktoring A.Ş.
62 Pamuk Faktoring A.Ş.
63 Para Finans Faktoring A.Ş.
64 QNB Finans Faktoring A.Ş.
65 Sardes Faktoring A.Ş.
66 Sümer Faktoring A.Ş.
67 Şeker Faktoring A.Ş.
68 Şirinoğlu Faktoring A.Ş.
69 Tam Faktoring A.Ş.
70 TEB Faktoring A.Ş.
71 Tradewind Faktoring A.Ş.
72 Tuna Faktoring A.Ş.
73 Ulusal Faktoring A.Ş.
74 Vakıf Faktoring A.Ş.
75 VDF Faktoring Hizmetleri A.Ş.
76 Yapı Kredi Faktoring A.Ş.
77 Yaşar Faktoring A.Ş.
78 Yeditepe Faktoring A.Ş.
79 Zorlu Faktoring A.Ş.

Financing Sector

80 ALJ Finansman A.Ş.
81 Doruk Finansman A.Ş.
82 Evkur Finansman A.Ş.
83 Hemenal Finansman A.Ş.
84 Koç Fiat Kredi Finansman A.Ş.
85 Koç Finansman A.Ş.
86 Mercedes Benz Finansman Türk A.Ş.
87 Orfin Finansman A.Ş.
88 Şeker Mortgage Finansman A.Ş.
89 TEB Finansman A.Ş.
90 Tırsan Finansman A.Ş.
91 Turkcell Finansman A.Ş.
92 Turk Finansman A.Ş.
93 VFS Finansman A.Ş.
94 Volkswagen Doğuş Finansman A.Ş.
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CONTRIBUTING TO 
MANUFACTURING 

TOGETHER 
Acting as the pivotal 
financial solution partner of 
the SMEs through factoring, 
we are using all the means 
at our disposal to keep the 
wheels of real sector 
turning. 
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Financial indicators

TL 14,831 million
As of year-end 2019, total business volume of 
financial leasing companies contracted by 
33.2% year-over-year to TL 14,831 million. 
While real estate got the biggest share out of 
total financial leasing receivables with 23.9%, 
other machinery and equipment accounted for 
20.3%. 

TL 129,912 million
Total business volume of factoring companies 
was down by 11.4% to TL 129,912 million in the 
twelve months to end-2019. Domestic and 
international factoring transactions made up 
84.7% and 15.3% of the total business volume, 
respectively. 

Financial Leasing
 

(TL million) 2018 2019 %Change

Transaction Volume 22,187 14,831 -33.20%

Total Assets 68,506 58,176 -15.10%

Receivables 60,707 48,721 -19.70%

NPL 4,711 4,416 -6.30%

Special Provisions (-) 2,351 2,836 20.70%

Shareholders’ Equity 9,601 10,376 8.10%

Borrowings 47,052 41,007 -12.80%

Net Profit 917 1,125 22.70%

    

(units)    

Number of Companies 24 23 -4.20%

Number of Branches 131 119 -9.20%

Number of Employees 1,401 1,232 -12.10%

Number of Customers 53,510 40,457 -24.40%

    

Return on Equity 10.10% 11.30% 1.2 pps

Return on Assets 1.40% 1.80% 0.4 pps

NPL Ratio 7.20% 8.30% 1.1 pps

Factoring
 

(TL million) 2018 2019 % Change

Transaction Volume 146,687 129,912 -11.40%

Total Assets 34,608 37,017 7.00%

Receivables 31,410 34,026 8.30%

NPL 2,096 2,140 2.10%

Special Provisions (-) 1,717 1,730 0.80%

Shareholders’ Equity 6,770 8,136 20.20%

Borrowings 23,048 25,590 11.00%

Net Profit 1,306 1,374 5.20%

    

(units)    

Number of Companies 58 56 -3.40%

Number of Branches 354 352 -0.60%

Number of Employees 4,355 4,269 -2.00%

Number of Customers 92,422 83,636 -9.50%

    

Return on Equity 20.80% 18.40% -2.4 pps

Return on Assets 3.30% 3.80% 0.5 pps

NPL Ratio 6.30% 5.90% -0.4 pps
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TL 17,766 million
Total business volume of financing companies, 
which decreased 32.7% year-over-year, was 
TL 17,766 million in 2019. 73.8% of the new 
loans extended during 2019 consisted of 
personal and corporate auto loans.

TL 162,509 million
The aggregate business volume of financial 
leasing, factoring and financing companies 
shrank by 16.8% and amounted to TL 162,509 
million in 2019 and had a 3.8% share in GDP.

Financing
 

(TL million) 2018 2019 % Change

Transaction Volume 26,407 17,766 -32.70%

Total Assets 39,707 27,560 -30.60%

Receivables 32,545 22,797 -30.00%

NPL 2,316 2,169 -6.40%

Special Provisions (-) 1,098 1,331 21.30%

Shareholders’ Equity 4,568 5,227 14.40%

Borrowings 29,877 19,528 -34.60%

Net Profit 559 633 13.20%

    

(units)    

Number of Companies 14 15 7.10%

Number of Branches 1 1 0.00%

Number of Employees 936 901 -3.70%

Number of Customers 4,565,434 3,386,999 -25.80%

    

Return on Equity 12.60% 12.90% 0.3 pps

Return on Assets 1.40% 1.90% 0.5 pps

NPL Ratio 6.60% 8.70% 2.1 pps

Total
 

(TL million) 2018 2019 % Change

Transaction Volume 195,281 162,509 -16.80%

Total Assets 142,822 122,753 -14.10%

Receivables 124,663 105,544 -15.30%

NPL 9,124 8,725 -4.40%

Special Provisions (-) 5,165 5,897 14.20%

Shareholders’ Equity 20,939 23,739 13.40%

Borrowings 99,978 86,125 -13.90%

Net Profit 2,782 3,132 12.60%

    

(units)    

Number of Companies 96 94 -2.10%

Number of Branches 486 472 -2.90%

Number of Employees 6,692 6,402 -4.30%

Number of Customers 4,711,366 3,511,092 -25.50%

    

Return on Equity 14.10% 14.00% -0.1 pps

Return on Assets 2.00% 2.40% 0.4 pps

NPL Ratio 6.80% 7.60% 0.8 pps
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Financial Indicators - Assets

Financial Leasing Sector - Total Assets 
(TL million)
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TL 58,176 million 
In 2019, total assets of the 
financial leasing sector 
decreased by 15.1% and 
amounted to TL 58,176 million.

TL 37,017 million 
The factoring sector’s total 
assets reached TL 37,017 
million in 2019, up by 7%.

TL 27,560 million 
Total assets of the financing 
sector amounted to TL 27,560 
million in 2019, translating into 
a year-on decline by 30.6%.

CAGR
15%

CAGR
15%

CAGR
18%

Factoring Sector - Total Assets 
(TL million)

Financing Sector - Total Assets 
(TL million)
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Sectoral Breakdown of Total Assets 
(%)

Position in the Finance Sector  
(%)

47

23

30

 Financial Leasing     Factoring     Financing

2.7

97.3

 Total (Financial Leasing, Factoring, Financing)     Banking Sector

19,692
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43,091
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122,753
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TL 122,753 million 
During 2019, consolidated total 
assets of the financial leasing, 
factoring and financing sectors 
declined by 14.1% and 
amounted to TL 122,753 
million. Total return on assets 
was registered as 2.4%. Annual 
average growth rate of total 
assets of the sectors between 
2006 and 2019 is 15%.

CAGR
15%

47% 
In 2019, the financial leasing 
sector claimed the highest 
share out of total assets with 
47%.

2.7% 
Factoring, financial leasing and 
financing sectors represent 
2.7% of the Turkish finance 
sector in terms of total assets.

Aggregate Total Assets of the Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Sectors 
(TL million)
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Financial Indicators - Receivables

Financial Leasing Sector - Receivables 
(TL million)
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TL 48,271 million 
Total receivables of the 
financial leasing sector were 
down by 19.7% in 2019 and 
amounted to TL 48,271 million.

TL 34,026 million 
Having grown by 8.3% in 2019, 
total receivables of the 
factoring sector reached 
TL 34,026 million.

TL 22,797 million 
Total receivables of the 
financing sector were worth 
TL 22,797 million in 2019, down 
by 30.0%.

CAGR
14%

CAGR
16%

CAGR
16%

Factoring Sector - Receivables 
(TL million)

Financing Sector - Receivables 
(TL million)
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Sectoral Breakdown of Total Receivables 
(%)

Position in the Finance Sector  
(%)

46
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32
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TL 105,544 million 
Total receivables of the three 
sectors decreased to 
TL 105,544 million in 2019, 
down by 15.3% year-over-year. 
Total receivables of the sectors 
grew by 15% on average 
between 2006 and 2019.

CAGR
15%

46% 
In 2019, the financial leasing 
sector got the highest share 
out of total receivables with 
46%.

3.8% 
All three sectors account for 
3.8% of the Turkish finance 
sector in terms of total 
receivables.

Total Receivables of the Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Sectors 
(TL million)

 Financial Leasing     Factoring     Financing

 Total (Financial Leasing, Factoring, Financing)     Banking Sector
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Financial Indicators - Shareholders’ Equity

Financial Leasing Sector - Shareholder’ Equity 
(TL million)
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TL 10,376 million 
Total shareholders’ equity of 
the financial leasing sector 
grew by 8.1% in 2019 and 
reached TL 10,376 million.

TL 8,136 million 
Total shareholders’ equity of 
the factoring sector was up by 
20.2% in 2019 and amounted 
to TL 8,136 million.

TL 5,227 million 
Total shareholders’ equity of 
the financing sector reached 
TL 5,227 million in 2019, 
translating into a year-on rise 
by 14.4%.

CAGR
14%

CAGR
13%

CAGR
27%

Factoring Sector - Shareholder’ Equity 
(TL million)

Financing Sector - Shareholders’ Equity 
(TL million)

377
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Sectoral Breakdown of Total Shareholders’ Equity 
(%)

Position in the Finance Sector  
(%)
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TL 23,739 million 
Total shareholders’ equity of 
the sectors displayed a year-on 
rise by 13.4% and reached 
TL 23,739 million in 2019. 
Return on equity, on the other 
hand, rose to 14.0%. Average 
annual growth rate of total 
shareholders’ equity of the 
sectors was registered as 15%.

CAGR
15%

44% 
In 2019, the financial leasing 
sector got the highest share 
out of total shareholders’ equity 
with 44%.

4.6% 
The three sectors constitute 
4.6% of the Turkish finance 
sector in terms of total 
shareholders’ equity.

Total Shareholders’ Equity of the Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Sectors 
(TL million)

 Financial Leasing     Factoring     Financing

 Total (Financial Leasing, Factoring, Financing)     Banking Sector
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Financial Indicators - Net Profit

Financial Leasing Sector - Net Profit 
(TL million)
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TL 1,125 million 
Total net profit of the financial 
leasing sector was up by 22.7% 
in 2019 and reached TL 1,125 
million.

TL 1,374 million 
Having gone up by 5.2% in 
2019, the factoring sector’s 
total net profit amounted to 
TL 1,374 million.

TL 633 million 
The financing sector booked 
TL 633 million in net profit in 
2019, which increased by 
13.2% year-over-year.

CAGR
9%

CAGR
8%

CAGR
22%

Factoring Sector - Net Profit 
(TL million)

Financing Sector - Net Profit 
(TL million)

7
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Sectoral Breakdown of Total Net Profit 
(%)

Position in the Finance Sector  
(%)
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TL 3,132 million 
As at year-end 2019, total net 
profit of the sectors increased 
to TL 3,132 million, which was 
12.6% higher than what it was 
in 2018. Total net profit of the 
three sectors combined grew by 
10% on average from 2006 to 
2019.

CAGR
10%

44% 
In 2019, factoring sector was 
the greatest contributor to total 
net profit with a share of 44%.

6.0% 
With the net profit they 
generated, the sectors got 
6.0% share in the Turkish 
finance industry.

Total Net Profit of the Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Sectors
(TL million)

 Financial Leasing     Factoring     Financing

 Total (Financial Leasing, Factoring, Financing)     Banking Sector
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CONTRIBUTING TO 
INVESTMENT 

TOGETHER 
We are fulfilling a growing 
role in the sustainable 
development of our country 
through the support we 
extend for financing of 
investments through 
financial leasing.
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World Economic Growth (2018-2021) (%) 

Realization Estimate Projection
2018 2019 2020 2021

WORLD OUTPUT 3.6 2.9 -3.0 5.8
Advanced Economies 2.2 1.7 -6.1 4.5
USA 2.9 2.3 -5.9 4.7
Europe (Euro Area) 1.9 1.2 -7.5 4.7

Germany 1.5 0.6 -7.0 5.2
France 1.7 1.3 -7.2 4.5
Italy 0.8 0.3 -9.1 4.8
Spain 2.4 2.0 -8.0 4.3

Japan 0.3 0.7 -5.2 3.0
UK 1.3 1.4 -6.5 4.0
Canada 1.9 1.6 -6.2 4.2
Other Advanced Economies 2.6 1.7 -4.6 4.5
Emerging Market and Developing Economies 4.5 3.7 -1.0 6.6
Emerging and Developing Europe 3.1 2.1 -5.2 4.2
Russia 1.5 1.3 -5.5 3.5
Emerging and Developing Asia 6.4 5.5 1.0 8.5
China 6.6 6.1 1.2 9.2
India 6.8 4.2 1.9 7.4
MENA 1.9 0.3 -3.3 4.2
Latin America 1.1 0.1 -5.2 3.4

DEVELOPMENTS IN THE WORLD 
ECONOMY 

The world economy displayed a low 
performance in 2019 tainted by 
volatilities and risks.

The decelerated economic activity 
experienced since the second half of 
2018 with the effect of the increased 

economic, political and geopolitical 
uncertainties in global conjuncture 
persisted through 2019. While the 
ongoing US-China trade wars that further 
escalated in 2019 is pointed out as one of 
the key actors resulting in the contracted 
demand the world is experiencing, the 
concerns over global trade that began to 
escalate from the second half of the year, 
increasingly pronounced geopolitical risks 

originating from the Middle East, declined 
investments and the global deceleration 
becoming especially marked in the 
manufacturing industry at an extent 
to negatively affect economic activity 
increased the downside risks for growth 
outlook in the rest of the year, and global 
growth lost momentum.

Source: IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2020

Developments in the World and Turkish Economies

Defining the Covid-19 pandemic as a shock that will have major 
implications for global economy, the IMF projects a 3% 
contraction for the world economy in 2020.
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During 2019, growth projections were 
constantly revised downwards.

In the World Economic Outlook reports it 
has released, the IMF revised the global 
growth projections downwards once 
again in January 2020 after October 
2019.

The report decreased the growth 
estimations for 2019 and 2020 by 0.1 
point each, updating them as 2.9% and 
3.3% respectively. In 2021, with a 0.2 
point downward revision, moderate 
growth is projected to continue and be 
registered as 3.4%. It has been stated 
that the negative developments in the 
economic activities observed in several 
emerging countries led by India resulted 
in decreased growth projections for the 
next two years.

Covid-19 pandemic tempested all prior 
projections.

After its outbreak in China’s Wuhan 
province in December 2019, the 
coronavirus epidemic turned into a 
world-scale health crisis at the onset of 
2020. Announced by the World Health 
Organization (WHO) with the name 
Covid-19, the pandemic’s negative impact 
on Western Europe and the USA was 
ongoing as of April 2020, the time of this 
writing.

China has substantially taken the 
pandemic under control and is taking 
normalization steps. Notwithstanding, 
European countries including Turkey 
and the USA concentrate on keeping the 
spread of the virus under control and on 
efforts to make sure that their healthcare 
systems respond to demand fully through 
various measures including lockdowns, 
curfews and travel restrictions.
 
Having defined the Covid-19 pandemic as 
a shock that will have major implications 
with respect to global economy in its April 
update to the World Economic Outlook, 
the IMF projects a 3% contraction for 
the world economy in 2020 due to the 
effect of the pandemic. In the presence 
of these exceptional circumstances, it is 
estimated that the loosening tendency 
that emerged in global monetary policies 
in the second half of the year will become 
much more visible come 2020 with the 
aim of supporting economic activity.

Monetary policies of the central banks 
of developed countries remain as the 
most prominent instrument steering the 
markets. 

Having revised its growth estimations 
for 2019 downwards, the US Federal 
Reserve (the Fed) kept the policy rate in 
the 2.25%-2.50% range as anticipated, 
but changed this attitude by mid-year, 
with the political pressure playing a part 
in it to some extent. The Fed made 25 
bps reductions each in July, September 
and October, pulling its policy rate down 
to the 1.50-1.75% interval.

The Fed concluded that the upper level 
of 1.75% as of year-end would suffice 
for economic outlook and stated that it 
would stop rate cuts throughout 2020. 
However, taking into consideration the 
negative effects upon the economy 
of the Covid-19 pandemic that altered 
all projections, the Fed decreased its 
policy rate by 50 bps to the 1-1.25% 
interval in its extraordinary meeting of 
3 March 2020.

On the other hand, low growth figures 
across the Euro Area caused the 
European Central Bank (ECB) to plan 
quantitative easing measures in its 
monetary policies. With a monthly 
asset buying program of EUR 20 million, 
the ECB introduced another support 
package and implemented a rate cut. The 
increased liquidity is targeted to curb the 
negative effects created by downside 
risks and to restrain anticipations.

The ECB assessed the developments in 
the first quarter of 2020 and decided 
to keep interest rates unchanged in its 
March meeting, leaving its policy rate 
fixed at zero, its deposits rate -0.50% 
and marginal funding rate at 0.25%. In a 
statement made, it was expressed that 
ECB would provide new temporary long-
term refinancing operations (LTRO) to the 
Euro Area’s financial system, assets with 
a net worth of EUR 120 million would be 
purchased with a focus on the private 
sector, and bank loan support would be 
extended for the SMEs.
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During 2019, rate cuts continued in 
emerging countries. The general opinion 
that the Fed and the ECB would not 
rush the normalization of their policies 
particularly in the medium-term and 
the weak inflation tendency provided 
the continuity of the policies of central 
banks of emerging countries, which were 
devised in a manner to support growth.

Global trade followed a fluctuating course 
throughout the year with the impact of 
the protectionist measures. 

An annual contraction of 2.5 points is 
estimated in the trade volume in 2019, 
when the negative repercussions 
of global trade wars got even more 

pronounced. Underlying this contraction 
was the conflict between the US and 
China, coupled with the emerging 
countries being forced to cut down their 
external demands that got overindebted. 

The World Trade Organization (WTO) 
predicted that global trade wars would 
continue to reduce the expansion of 
trade volume also in 2019 and 2020, and 
announced a downward revision of its 
projections.

Due to the tensions in trade and 
increasing economic volatility, the WTO 
updated its growth projection for global 
trade volume as 1.2% in its January 2020 
report.

Commodity prices displayed a relative rise 
in the last quarter of 2019.

Since monetary policies remained 
supportive of growth and global 
uncertainty relatively decreased, 
commodity prices went up by 1.4% on 
average quarterly in the last quarter of 
2019. 

The flat prices in the last quarter of 
the year despite the continuing supply 
limitations in the industrial metal market 
resulted from the negative outlook of the 
global manufacturing industry activity 
that got more pronounced as well as the 
lengthened trade tension between US 
and China.

Developments in the World and Turkish Economies

World Trade Growth Rates (2017-2020) (%) 

Realization Estimate 
2017 2018 2019 2020

World Trade Volume 5.7 3.6 1.1 3.2
Imports- Advanced Economies 4.7 3.0 1.2 2.7
Imports - Emerging Market and Developing Economies 7.5 5.1 0.7 4.3
Exports - Advanced Economies 4.7 3.1 0.9 2.5
Exports - Emerging Market and Developing Economies 7.3 3.9 1.9 4.1

Source: IMF World Economic Outlook, October 2019

An annual contraction of 2.5 points is estimated in the trade 
volume in 2019, when the negative repercussions of global 
trade wars got even more pronounced.
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On the other hand, trade wars and 
geopolitical negativities will probably 
trigger deteriorations in global risk 
perception and keep the uptrend of 
precious metal prices vibrant.

During 2019, oil prices declined by nearly 
10%.

Oil price is another variable that affects 
the world trade and that is also affected 
by the developments in trade. In 2019 
that saw global trade wars intensify, 
decelerated global growth and trade 
volume triggered a nearly 10% decline in 
oil price.

As geopolitical uncertainty remained high 
in the last quarter of 2019, the progress 
in trade conflicts between the US and 
China caused the oil price to oscillate 
around USD 60-67. Having floated near 
the top levels of the past 7 months by 
exceeding USD 70 a barrel in the last 
week of 2019, oil price closed the year in 
the order of USD 67.5 a barrel. 

The diminutive effect the Covid-19 
pandemic had upon oil demand has been 
leading to an oil price meltdown in the 
first half of 2020. The world’s largest 
oil producer countries decided to limit 
daily oil production from the beginning 
of May in order to stabilize the market, 
but the collapsed consumption resulted 
in an oversupply that caused oil storage 
facilities all around the world to fill up.

The rise in crude oil price in the last 
quarter of 2019 triggered an upturn in 
headline inflation rates.

Despite the continued weakening of 
global growth outlook, headline inflation 
rates in developed and emerging 
countries had a quarterly rise in 
connection with the increase in crude oil 
price in the last quarter of 2019. In the 
same period, while core inflation took 
an upturn for developed countries, it 
dropped in emerging economies.

Although unemployment rate preserved 
its historic low levels in the US in the 
fourth quarter, continued reasonable 
rise in salaries coupled with the upturn 
in crude oil price somewhat pulled the 
headline consumer inflation up in the 
same period.

After having gone down to below 2% 
by late 2018 in the Euro Area, annual 
CPI retained the same levels throughout 
2019. Inflation closed the year at 1.3%, 
after hitting its highest at 1.7% in April. 
Despite the tight labor market and 
salaries that continue to rise, headline 
and core inflation rates will possibly 
remain below 2% in the medium term.

Sources:
IMF World Economic Outlook reports, OECD Economic 
Outlook reports, CBRT, Presidency of Turkey, 
Presidency of Strategy and Budget
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TURKISH ECONOMY

Turkey underwent an economic 
rebalancing process in 2019. 

Having started to shrink from the last 
quarter of 2018, the Turkish economy 
downsized in the first two quarters of 
2019, grew by 1% in the third quarter, 
before displaying a rapid development 
of 6% to exceed projections in the 
fourth. The country’s growth rate for 
the whole year came to 0.9%. While net 
exports acted as the greatest contributor 
to economic activity in the first two 
quarters, the decline in investment 

expenditures and particularly in 
construction investments put significant 
pressure on growth. In the third quarter 
of the year, on the other hand, economic 
activity resumed growth trend owing 
to the positive impact of consumption 
expenditures although the contribution 
of net exports turned negative.

GDP at current prices by production 
approach was up by 14.9% year-over-
year and reached TL 4,280 billion in 
2019. Per capita GDP, on the other hand, 
was calculated as TL 51,834 at current 
prices and 9,217 in USD terms.

Looking at the components that make 
up GDP, it is seen that all main sectors 
other than the construction industry 
contributed positively to annual growth. 
On a chained-volume-index basis, total 
added value of financial and insurance 
activities increased by 7.4% year-
over-year in 2019, while that of public 
administration, education, human 
health and social services went up by 
4.6%, other service activities by 3.7% 
and the agricultural sector by 3.3%. 
Construction sector was down by 8.6%, 
and administrative and support services 
activities was down by 1.8%. 

Developments in the World and Turkish Economies

GDP Growth (buyer prices)

Source: TurkStat
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GDP at current prices by production approach was up by 14.9% 
year-over-year and reached TL 4,280 billion in 2019.
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The relative recovery in the economy 
gained momentum in the last quarter 
of the year with the low base effect, in 
addition to the rate cuts implemented 
by the CBRT. While recuperation is 
anticipated to continue with the low 
base effect and deferred consumption 
expenditures coming into the cycle in 
the first quarter of 2020, geopolitical 
developments and the impact of the 
globally threatening Covid-19 pandemic 
will be telling upon growth. 

Rate of unemployment was 13.7% in 
2019.

In 2019, unemployment rate across 
Turkey was up by 2.7 points to 13.7% 
and non-agricultural unemployment was 
registered as 16.0%, up 3.1 points.

The rate of employment in 2019 was 
down by 1.7 points to 45.7%, where labor 
participation rate declined by 0.2 points 
to 53.0%.

Unemployment rate in the 15-64 age 
interval increased by 2.8 points year-
over-year to reach 14.0%, while non-
agricultural unemployment was up 3.1 
points to reach 16.1%. Average youth 
unemployment (defined as the 15-24 
age interval) increased by 5.1 points in 
the same period and went up to as high 
as 25.4%.

Inflation ended 2019 below 12%, the 
target set in the New Economic Program 
(NEP). 

In 2019, inflation displayed a downward 
trend due to weak domestic demand 
conditions, a relatively stable Turkish lira, 
high base effect, and moderate course 

of commodity prices, and ended the year 
below 12%, the target set in the New 
Economic Program (NEP). Having ended 
2018 at 20.30%, annual CPI was up by 
0.74% in December on a month-over-
month basis, by 11.84% as compared to 
December 2017, and 15.18% on the basis 
of 12-month averages.

While the food group that saw a monthly 
average rise by 2.9% in prices was 
the highest contributor to annual CPI 
inflation with 254 bps, it was followed by 
the transportation group with 205 bps. 
The lowest annual rise in CPI occurred in 
the communication group with 3.16%. 
The course of the PPI, which put pressure 
on CPI for 32 months from December 
2016 until August 2019, changed in 
the last quarter of 2019, and PPI, which 
floated above CPI, fell below CPI after the 
said period. 33.64% at year-end 2018, 
PPI ended 2019 at 7.36%.

Inflation (Annual - %)
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Developments in the World and Turkish Economies

While foreign trade deficit narrowed 
down in connection with the decline 
in economic activity, current accounts 
balance produced a surplus in 2019.

In 2019, exports increased by 2.1% 
year-over-year to USD 171.5 billion, while 
imports shrank by 9.1% to USD 202.7 
billion.

Foreign trade deficit diminished by 
43.5% year-over-year and dropped to 
USD 31.2 billion in 2019. The ratio of 
exports to imports went up from 75.3% 
in 2018 to 84.6% in 2019.

In 2019, Germany led the total exports 
ex-Turkey, and was followed by the 
United Kingdom, Italy, Iraq and USA. 
Exports to top five countries constituted 
30.7% of total exports.

On the imports front, the leader Russia 
was followed, in order, by China, Germany, 
USA and Italy. Imports from the top five 
countries constituted 38.8% of total 
imports.

As a result of weakened domestic 
demand, coupled with the lower oil prices 
and the strong performance of tourism, 
12-month cumulative current account 
began posting a surplus from June 2019 
onwards, and produced a surplus of 
USD 1.7 billion for the whole year, for the 
first time since 2001. In the months that 
followed, the upward trend in domestic 
demand caused imports to widen and 
therefore started to limit the current 
account surplus. 
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In 2019, exports increased by 2.1% year-over-year to 
USD 171.5 billion, while imports shrank by 9.1% to 
USD 202.7 billion.



37

The Association of Financial Institutions Annual Report 2019

 Direct Investments     Portfolio Investments     Other Investments     Current Account Deficit

Current Account And Financial Account (Net) (12 Months, USD Billion)
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The CBRT gradually lowered its policy 
rate to 12% by the end of the year.

The CBRT formulates its monetary policy 
decisions by taking into account inflation 
projects, pricing behavior and the 
developments in all the other elements 
affecting inflation.

During 2019, the CBRT defined its 
monetary stance in view of the main 
tendency of inflation, and established 

the degree of monetary tightness so as 
to ensure continued decline in inflation 
and its compatibility with the targeted 
path.

While keeping the one-week repo 
tender rate flat at 24% in the first 
half of 2019, the CBRT adopted a 
series of decisions regarding liquidity 
management. Accumulated FC 
effects that diminished on the back 
of coordinated tight monetary policy 

stance and powerful policy and the 
moderate course of domestic demand 
resulted in a pronounced betterment in 
inflation dynamics. In connection with 
the improved inflation outlook, the CBRT 
gradually brought the policy rate down 
to 12% at the end of the year through 
decisions adopted in its meetings in July, 
September, October and December. 
 
Source: TurkStat, CBRT, Ministry of Treasury and 
Finance

Source: TurkStat
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CONTRIBUTING TO 
LIFE 

TOGETHER 
We are providing lifeline to 
individuals and micro 
businesses with the 
support we extend to 
consumption expenditures 
and financing of commercial 
activity. 
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2019 Activities

Introduced as a first in the world in our country, CRR is cited as 
an example in the international arena and provides the global 
factoring sector with a new perspective. 

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2019 DEVELOPMENTS 
AND PROJECTS

CENTRAL RECEIVABLES RECORDING 

AFI carries out its activities under the 
Financial Leasing, Factoring and 
Financing Companies Law no. 6361. 
Among the major tasks assumed by the 
Association is to set up the Central 
Receivables Recording (CRR) where 
invoices and any documents substituting 
the invoices used in factoring 
transactions are recorded.

Supporting formal economy and 
preventing double assignment and 
financing of the same receivable, CRR 
was set up under the AFI by the factoring 
sector and started to be used in January 
2015. 

The CRR, into which all kinds of 
documents and information pertaining 
to receivables subject to factoring 
transactions are entered, precluded 740 
thousand risky transactions until the end 
of 2019 thanks to recurrence and amount 
overrun controls performed during such 
recording. 

E-documents recorded into the CRR are 
verified by Revenue Administration (RA) 
through integration with the RA.

In brief, CRR;

•	 is	utilized	by	factoring	companies	and	
banks,

•	prevents	double	assignment	and	
financing of the same receivable,

•	runs	online	and	integrated	with	the	
e-invoice system of the RA,

•	verifies	the	accuracy	of	e‑invoices	and	
e-archives through integration with 
the RA,

•	allows	verification	of	the	T.R.	ID	No.	and	
VAT No. of buyer and seller companies 
through the Credit Bureau,

•	allows	tracking	payments	and	
collections in relation to the documents 
pertaining to a given receivable,

•	maintains	records	of	data	for	all	
assigned receivable documents in 
relation to the finance sector,

•	 provides	reporting	service	on	assigned	
receivables.

The Central Receivables Recording (CRR) 
provides a new perspective to the global 
factoring sector.

Introduced as a first in the world, CRR 
is cited as a model in the international 
arena and provides a new perspective to 
the global factoring sector.

By the end of 2019, 56 factoring 
companies and 23 banks recorded 
invoices or any documents substituting 
the invoices that were assigned them 
to the CRR. According to the CRR data, 
26.5 million invoices and receivable 
documents worth TL 738 billion in 
total were recorded in the system, and 
740 thousand risky transactions were 
prevented since its inception. The ratio 
of e-invoices, which was 23% back when 
the system was established, reached 
57% as of year-end 2019. The uptrend in 
records is ongoing. 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Ratio of E-documents Registered at the 
CRR

34%

55% 57%

42%

51%



41

The Association of Financial Institutions Annual Report 2019

Quantity and Ratio of Documents by Type 

Document Type Quantity Average Amount of
Documents 

(TL thousand)

Quantity Ratio
(%)

e-Archives 211,694 13 5
e-Invoices 2,235,279 39 48
Printed Documents 2,195,675 30 47
Grand Total 4,642,648 34 100

Quantity and Ratio of Documents by Category

Category Quantity Amount 
(TL thousand)

Average Amount of 
Documents 

(TL thousand)

Quantity Ratio
(%)

Amount Ratio
(%)

Exports 186,089 20,609,764 111 4 13
Imports 2,169 1,541,722 711 0 1
Domestic 4,454,390 133,825,743 30 96 86
Grand Total 4,642,648 155,977,230 34 100 100

Breakdown of Document Types (quantity basis %)
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CRR serves as an important data 
warehouse for the sector. 

In the second phase of the CRR, which 
is a live system, payment instruments 
associated with the assigned receivable 
documents also began to be recorded in 
the system. With 56 factoring companies 
and 23 banks that became part of the 
system, a significant data pool is created, 
which covers invoices, similar receivable 
documents and associated payment 
instruments and collection notifications 
in the sector.

In order to meet the reporting needs of 
CRR-user companies on their own data, 
data analyses studies on the basis of 
user banks, factoring companies and 
sectors were completed and launched for 
access.

In addition, work was initiated for system 
updates for refactoring transactions; for 
inclusion of retail sales receipts, e-self-
employment receipts, e-producer receipts 
in the system; and for performance 
of additional controls for payment 
instruments associated with receivable 
documents. These initiatives are slated 
for introduction in 2020.

Central Receivables Recording (CRR) and 
Movable Pledge Registry System (MPRS) 
have been integrated.

A protocol was signed between the 
Ministry of Trade and AFI for the 
integration of CRR and the Movable 
Pledge Registry System (MPRS).

MPRS is used to register, amend and 
cancel mortgage agreements, to transfer 
pledged movable property and the right 
of mortgage, and to register the right 
to move a subordinated mortgage up to 
higher priority ranks, to inquire about 
the registered matters and to create 
documents pertaining to the same.

The following will be enabled by 
the integration between CRR and 
MPRS, where data -including invoice 
information- pertaining to the receivables 
that factoring companies and banks 
take over under the Law no. 6361 are 
recorded:

•	 CRR	members	will	be	able	to	
simultaneously and electronically 
inquire pledged receivables, which are 
registered with the Chattel Mortgage 
Registry by the Ministry, based on 

criteria to be set according to types 
of receivable documents, to find 
out whether a given receivable was 
previously pledged in part or in whole;

•	Similarly,	MPRS	users	will	be	able	to	
simultaneously inquire electronically 
the information regarding pledges of 
receivables that are registered with 
the CRR to find out whether a given 
receivable has been previously subject 
to transfer in part or in whole.

•	Moreover,	members	will	be	able	to	
access MPRS via CRR, and to perform 
mortgage procedures under the 
Law no. 6750 (the Law no. 6750 
dated 20 October 2016 concerning 
the Chattel Mortgage in Commercial 
Transactions).

The integration between CRR and MPRS 
is planned to go live in 2020.

2019 Activities

End-to-end e-transformation service is furnished to 
establishments with the e-invoice, e-archive and e-custody 
applications provided under the AFI roof.
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DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION AT AFI

Aiming to upgrade the work processes 
and products of factoring, which is a 
valuable financial instrument in trade 
finance in today’s digitalized world, AFI 
decided to augment its contribution to 
this process and thus initiated the Private 
Integrator Project.

In July 2017, the Trade Finance 
Commercial Enterprise organized under 
the AFI became an e-invoice private 
integrator.

Within the scope of the private integrator 
project, user companies are provided with 
the following services: 

•	 custody
•	 e‑invoice
•	 e‑archive	
•	 e‑ledger
•	 e‑reconciliation
•	 e‑bank	balance

The necessary infrastructure has been 
set up for companies wishing to digitalize 
their business processes.

Under the private integrator services 
the companies have been provided with 
e-transformation applications, which 
save labor, time and cost, enhancing 
total quality and making financial data 
accessible electronically, all under the AFI 
assurance.

E-invoice and e-archive applications take 
the lead among the Private Integrator-
supplied services, which are critical for 
recording the economy. The e-invoice 
service provided as a Private Integrator 
lets companies work more easily and 
faster with a much more reliable system.

E-books (of account) application is 
another important phase of the digital 
transformation process. This application 
enables the preparation of journals 
and ledgers, which are compulsory to 
be kept, to be prepared and printed in 

electronic file format in compliance with 
all regulatory and technical requirements, 
guaranteeing their inalterability, integrity 
and authenticity, thus allowing them to 
be used as proof before relevant parties. 
E-booking of accounts is a system that 
keeps all financial data of organizations 
secure, while also facilitating reporting 
and analyses. In addition, all e-invoices, 
e-archive and e-books (of account) 
records received/sent through the 
private integrator can be retained on 
this platform throughout the legally 
prescribed period of time.

End-to-end e-transformation service 
is furnished to establishments with 
the e-invoice, e-archive and e-custody 
applications provided under the AFI roof. 
An infrastructure is built for companies 
wishing to carry their business processes 
to the digital environment, which will 
allow them to register with the AFI 
e-portal via fkb.org.tr and digitalize all 
their processes.

21 Companies

e‑Invoices
510,629

e‑Archives
736,771

e‑Books
8,660,951 pages of 

e‑Reconciliation

ITIL(*)

RA(**)

AFI

•	Foundation
•	Service	Design
•	Transition
•	Continual	Service

•	ISO	22301
•	ISO	27001
•	ISO	2000

•	21	Companies
•	Agency	Studies
•	Cooperation	Studies
•	Social	Media

(*) ITIL (Information Technology Infrastructure Library)
(**) RA: Revenue Administration
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TRADE CHAIN FINANCE SYSTEM 

Launched in 2019, the Trade Chain 
Finance System (TCFS) gives the SMEs 
a faster, more secure and low-cost 
access to financing through electronical 
receivable assignment and confirmation 
to be received from the -mostly large-
scale- buyer companies. 

Designed in a secure and centralized 
structure using the Blockchain concept, 
TCFS is targeted at letting the SMEs 
use their trade receivables as cash in 
trading via the system, to provide low-
cost funding through securitization of 
the receivables portfolio created in this 
pool, and reach new international loan 
facilities through refinancing.

Once the TCFS Platform begins to be 
used by wide audiences, it is projected 
that the access rate to financing by SMEs, 
which are responsible for 56% of the 
added value generated for the national 
economy, will rise from its current level of 
24% to the order of 50%.

From a macroeconomic standpoint, 
the TCFS Platform will bring along the 
following advantages:

•	 It	will	be	useful	for	predicting	the	
macroeconomic variables and will 
enable proactive measures as instant 
information about commercial activity 
will be available,

•	 Unregistered	economy	will	lessen	
significantly. 

•	 The	supply	chain	system	incorporating	
the SMEs, large-scale companies and 
financial institutions will acquire a 
more institutionalized structure.

CORE FACTORING SOFTWARE PROJECT

For fulfilling the software need of the 
factoring sector, detailed analyses have 
been undertaken and contacts have 
been held with technology companies 
backed by national and foreign capital 
regarding the Core Factoring Software. 
The project has been postponed to 2020 
by the Association members, and will be 
revisited in 2020 according to the sector’s 
needs.

UNDOCUMENTED EXPORT CREDITS 
MODULE

Launched in 2019, the Undocumented 
Export Credits Module (UEC) gives all 
companies quick reach from a single 
point to the latest version of customs 
declarations, which are critical in closing 
undocumented export credits.

Through these services, financial 
institutions can annotate the 
declarations they use for closures, and 
these annotations can be viewed by 
other financial institutions querying 
declarations. This precludes recurrent 
uses.

The financial institutions using the 
module can use the system via their 
internal webservice or via AFI UEC 
application. During 2020, developments 
in compliance with the Ministry of Trade 
are planned to be completed and version 
updates are intended to be carried out in 
line with the demands from the sector 
in the UEC Module that is currently being 
used by 21 companies.

 

2019 Activities

On 20 August 2019, General Directorate of Customs 
launched paperless declaration system.

 General Directorate of 
Customs

Factoring

Financial 
Leasing

Undocumented Export Credits Module

Central Bank
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SHARED DATA CENTER

The requirements that are specified in 
the “Communiqué on the Information 
System Management and Audit of 
Financial Leasing, Factoring and 
Financing Companies”, which came into 
effect on 6 April 2019, are planned to 
be put into implementation. Accordingly, 
work was initiated to create the 

“Shared Data Center” with a customized 
cloud architecture owned by AFI with 
the purpose of satisfying system 
infrastructure requirements of AFI-
member companies in the fastest and 
most efficient manner, and providing 
an environment that will allow low-cost 
utilization of current technologies. The 
AFI Cloud Data Center is targeted to go 
live during 2020. 

The services planned to be offered within 
the scope of the AFI Cloud Shared Data 
Center include:

•	 Infrastructure:	setting	up	the	system	
infrastructure where our members 
will be able to host their primary and 
secondary systems,

•	 Managed	Services:	Management	of	
the member systems hosted in the 
AFI Cloud Shared Data Center and the 
infrastructure. 

Replication

Members

Primary Data Center Secondary Data Center

Architectural Structure

Member 1 DC Member 2 DC Member n DC Member 1 DC Member 2 DC Member n DC

Virtualization Layer Virtualization Layer
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2019 Activities

FINANCIAL LEASING CONTRACT 
REGISTRATION SYSTEM

In keeping with the duty delegated 
by Article 22 of the Financial Leasing, 
Factoring and Financing Companies Law 
no. 6361, the Financial Leasing Contracts 
Registration System was established 
by the AFI. The Circular on the Contract 
Registration System was approved by 
the BRSA and entered into force upon 
its publication on the AFI website on 
9 February 2015. 

The System is created to be kept fully 
on electronic environment by Central 
Registry Agency (MKK) and is being 
operated by the MKK on behalf of the AFI.

The contracts, which are electronically 
signed, are being entered into the 
system by financial leasing companies, 
participation, investment and 
development banks, and can be retrieved 
24/7 bearing the Registered Document 

time stamp. At present, the system users 
include 23 financial leasing companies, 
seven participation banks, two 
investment banks and two development 
banks.

The system can be accessed from 
the screen and through Institutional 
Integration (web service), and third 
parties are able to inquire about the 
leased goods.

Pursuant to a decision adopted by the 
Financial Leasing Sector Representatives 
Board, a sapling is donated for each 
contract registered and activated under a 
protocol signed between the AFI and the 
Directorate General of Forestry.

Within the scope of the protocols 
executed with İstanbul Regional 
Directorate of Forestry, 23,125 saplings 
were planted for 23,125 financial leasing 
contracts financed in 2015 and 23,751 
saplings were planted for 23,751 financial 

leasing contracts financed in 2016. 
Subsequently, necessary steps were 
completed for creating the AFI - Financial 
Leasing Memorial Forest.

The Financial Leasing Sector Board is 
determined to perpetuate this important 
social responsibility initiative in the 
future.

REGISTER FOR LEASING TRANSACTIONS 
PROVIDED BY NON-RESIDENT FINANCIAL 
LEASING COMPANIES TO RESIDENT 
COMPANIES

In keeping with the duty delegated 
thereto by Article 21 of the Law no. 
6361, financial leasing contracts where 
the financial leasing company is a non-
resident and the lessee is a resident, 
are being registered by the AFI as per 
the Circular that went into force on 
31 July 2013 upon its approval by the 
BRSA. These contracts generally belong 
to aircraft transactions.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Contract Registration Statistics

17.4

21,426

 24,880 
25,377

16,225

9,960

20.9
17.8

21.4

25.6

20152014 2016 2017 2018 2019

Cross-Border Financial Leasing Contracts Statistics 
(from 31 July 2013)

 3.44 
 2.93

 1.77 

 3.62 

 5.07 
 4.75 

 Total Amount in Registered Contracts (TL billion)
 Number of Registered Contracts

 Cost of Goods (USD billion)     Total Leases (USD billion)

 2.58  2.50 

 1.54 

 2.78 

 4.08  4.00 
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The Architecture of the Financial Leasing Contract Registration System
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2019 Activities

PUBLICITY ACTIVITIES 

Lease Conference-İstanbul 2019

Organized by Alta Group (LAR), a global 
provider of leasing and asset finance 
advisory services, and European Invigors 
EMEA LLP, part of the Alta Group, the 
“Lease Conference-İstanbul 2019” took 
place on 20 & 21 November. With our 
country chosen to host the event, the 
Conference was also supported by the 
Association of Financial Institutions.

Holding an important place in the 
leasing sector owing to its international 
character, the Lease Conference hosted 
eminent participants from various 
countries for two days. During the 

international Lease Conference, the 
leading managers of the sector spoke 
about the developments in “Financial 
Leasing and Fleet Management in Central 
and Eastern Europe and in the Middle 
East and Africa”.

In addition to all of the above, the 
conference has also provided a stage 
for talks about the leasing sector, fleet 
management, business development, 
growth and profitability in Turkey and in 
the world. The Conference also included 
sub-headings such as the trends in the 
leasing sector, funding and the role of the 
European Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development (EBRD), IFRS 16 compliance 
and fleet management.

During the Conference that featured 
speakers with international experience 
in the sector, Cüneyt Akpınar, Ph.D., 
the Deputy Chairperson of the 
Association of Financial Institutions and 
Chairperson to the Financial Leasing 
Sector Representatives Board, made a 
presentation titled “Shifting Balances in 
the Coming Decade”.

The organization of the Lease 
Conference in İstanbul is also important in 
that it has been the first sector meeting 
held in our country after a long time.
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DEVELOPMENTS CONCERNING THE 
MEMBERS

Discontinued Companies

By the BRSA Chairman’s Office decision 
dated 28 February 2019, the operating 
license of Ziraat Finansal Kiralama 
A.Ş. (the company) was revoked at the 
company’s request pursuant to Article 
50(1) of the Financial Leasing, Factoring 
and Financing Companies Law no. 6361.

By the BRSA Chairman’s Office decision 
dated 10 October 2019, the operating 
license of Analiz Faktoring A.Ş. (the 
company) was revoked. The decision 
stated that the shareholders of Analiz 
Faktoring A.Ş. did not satisfy the 
condition set out in Article 6(1)(d) of 
the Financial Leasing, Factoring and 
Financing Companies Law no. 6361, and 
accordingly, it was decided to revoke the 
company’s operating license. Article 6(1)
(d) of the Law reads that the company’s 
founding shareholders are required to 
“possess the financial strength and 
reputation to cover the amount of capital 
that they have subscribed to”.

By the BRSA Chairman’s Office decision 
dated 31 January 2019, the operating 
license of Eren Faktoring A.Ş. (the 
company) was revoked at the company’s 
request pursuant to Article 50(1) of 
the Financial Leasing, Factoring and 
Financing Companies Law no. 6361.

Based on the scrutiny of the letter dated 
13 February 2019 and no. 12509071-
103.01.01-E.2895 and its appendices 
attached to the BRSA Chairman’s Office 
agenda letter dated 14 February 2019;

The operating license of Merkez 
Faktoring A.Ş. is revoked based on Article 
50 paragraph (1), clauses (c) and (e) of 
the Law on Financial Leasing, Factoring 
and Financing Companies. 

By the BRSA Chairman’s Office decision 
dated 2 May 2019, the operating license 
of Strateji Faktoring A.Ş. (the company) 
was revoked at the company’s request 
pursuant to Article 50(1) of the Financial 
Leasing, Factoring and Financing 
Companies Law no. 6361.

Recently Established Companies

Tradewind Faktoring A.Ş.

Based on the scrutiny of the letter 
dated 20 February 2019 and no. 
12509071-103.01.01-E.3339 and 
its appendices attached to the BRSA 
Chairman’s Office agenda letter dated 
20 February 2019; an operating license 
has been granted to Tradewind Faktoring 
A.Ş., the incorporation of which was 
authorized by the BRSA decision dated 
28 June 2018 and no. 7865, under Article 
7 of the Financial Leasing, Factoring and 
Financing Companies Law no. 6361 and 
Article 5(2) of the Regulation on the 
Establishment and Operating Principles 
of Financial Leasing, Factoring and 
Financing Companies.

Turk Finansman A.Ş.

Based on the scrutiny of the letter 
dated 3 April 2019 and no. 12509071-
104.01.01-E.6218 and its appendices 
attached to the BRSA Chairman’s Office 
agenda letter dated 3 April 2019; 
it has been decided to grant an 
operating license to Turk Finansman 
A.Ş., the incorporation of which was 
authorized by the BRSA decision dated 
8 November 2018 and no. 8080, under 
Article 7 of the Financial Leasing, 
Factoring and Financing Companies 
Law no. 6361 and Article 5(2) of the 
Regulation on the Establishment and 
Operating Principles of Financial Leasing, 
Factoring and Financing Companies.
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2019 Activities

MEETINGS IN 2019

MEMBER MEETINGS 

Date Explanation Sector
3 January Supply-Chain Finance Introductory Meeting Factoring
7 January Legal Committee Meeting on Taking a Legal Opinion on the Subject of Concordatum Leasing
13 January Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
14 January MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board) Committee Meeting Factoring
15 January Working Committee Meeting on IT Systems Communique Draft AFI
15 January CRR Analysis Meeting Factoring
16 January Informative Meeting with Prof. Dr. Emrehan İnal on Legal Opinion to be Taken Leasing
17 January Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
17 January Leasing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Leasing
17 January Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
17 January AFI Board of Directors Meeting AFI
18 January MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board) Committee Meeting Factoring
20 January Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
22 January Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
23 January Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
25 January Factoring Sector Meeting Factoring
28 January Working Committee Meeting on IT Systems Communique Draft AFI
5 February Financial Affairs Meeting on Revaluation within the Scope of TFRS 9 Leasing
5 February Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
6 February Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
10 February Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
12 February Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
14 February Factoring Software Meeting Factoring
14 February Operational Committee Meeting Financing 
18 February MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board) Committee Meeting Factoring
18 February Factoring Software Meeting Factoring
20 February Financing Sector Representatives Board and General Manager Meeting Leasing
22 February Eximbank Credits Committee Meeting Leasing
25 February Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
26 February Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
27 February Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
28 February Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
8 March Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
11 March Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
11 March Leasing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Leasing
11 March Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
11 March AFI Board of Directors Meeting AFI
12 March Financial Affairs Working Committee Meeting Leasing
12 March Operational Working Committee Meeting Leasing
14 March Compliance Officers and Internal Control Meeting Leasing
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Date Explanation Sector
14 March Factoring Software Meeting Factoring
14 March MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board) Committee Meeting Factoring
16 March Legal Working Committee Meeting Leasing
26 March Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
27 March Leasing to Consumers Working Committee Meeting Leasing
27 March Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
28 March Operational Working Committee Meeting Financing 
2 April Eximbank Loan Meeting with Fund Managers Working Committee Leasing
3 April Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
9 April Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
10 April Operational Committee Meeting Financing 
10 April Leasing Joint Software Meeting Leasing
10 April Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
11 April Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
11 April Factoring Sector Meeting Factoring
16 April Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
16 April Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
17 April Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
17 April Meeting of General Managers Leasing
17 April Leasing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Leasing
17 April Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
18 April Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
18 April Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
29 April Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
30 April Eximbank Credits Committee Meeting Leasing
2 May Factoring Sector IT Information Meeting Factoring
10 May MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board) Committee Meeting Factoring
10 May Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
13 May Legal Working Committee Meeting Regarding the Issue That Contracts Should Be in Writing Leasing
15 May IT Committee Meeting Factoring
16 May Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
16 May AFI Board of Directors Meeting AFI
21 May Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
22 May Factoring Sector Meeting Factoring
22 May Internal Control Committee Meeting Financing 
22 May Working Committee Meeting on Yacht Transactions Leasing
23 May Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
28 May Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
29 May Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
2 July Factoring Sector Meeting Factoring
5 July AFI General Assembly AFI
10 July Factoring Sector Meeting Factoring
10 July Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
10 July Leasing Sector Representatives Board Meeting and Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Election 
Leasing
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2019 Activities

Date Explanation Sector
10 July AFI Board of Directors Meeting AFI
23 July Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
23 July Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
24 July Operational Committee Meeting Financing 
24 July Leasing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Leasing
25 July Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
25 July Working Committee Meeting on Financing Renewable Energy Investments with Foreign 

Currency 
Leasing

30 July Meeting of the Law Working Committee on the Draft Regulation Amendment on Financial 
Restructuring

Leasing

7 August Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
21 August Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
22 August Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
22 August Factoring Sector Meeting Factoring
22 August Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
23 August Workshop of the Legal Working Committee on the Financial Restructuring Agreement Leasing
28 August Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
6 September Contract Template to be Sent to the Public Procurement Authority Leasing
9 September MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board) Committee Meeting Factoring
11 September Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
12 September Operational Committee Meeting Financing 
17 September Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
18 September Meeting with Leasing Sector Representatives and Yacht Tour Leasing
18 September Leasing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Leasing
19 September Presentations of Three Consultancy Companies to Sector Executives within the Scope of 

Their Bids on the Process Management of Leasing Joint Software Project Tender
Leasing

19 September Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
19 September Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
20 September Legislation Development Meeting of the Law Working Committee Leasing
23 September Financial Affairs and Legal Committees Meeting Financing 
25 September Credits Committee Meeting Factoring
26 September AFI Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting AFI
26 September IT Committee Meeting Factoring
27 September MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board) Committee Meeting Factoring
9 October Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
10 October Operational Committee Meeting Financing 
15 October Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
16 October Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
17 October IT Committee Meeting Financing 
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Date Explanation Sector
18 October Personal Data Protection Agency (PDPA) Working Committee Financing 
24 October Factoring Sector Meeting Factoring
24 October Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
24 October AFI Board of Directors Meeting AFI
25 October Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
30 October Working Committee Meeting on Treasury Backed Credit Guarantee System Leasing
5 November Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
7 November Briefing on the Shared Data Center Project Conducted by the Factoring Sector 

Representatives Board
AFI

12 November Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
14 November Operational Committee Meeting Financing 
20 November Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
21 November Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
25 November Leasing Compliance Officers Meeting Leasing
26 November MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board) Committee Meeting Factoring
27 November Meeting of General Managers Leasing
27 November Leasing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Leasing
29 November Presentations of Two Software Companies to Sector Executives within the Scope of 

Leasing Joint Software Project
Leasing

3 December Law Working Committee Meeting Leasing
3 December Credits Committee Meeting Factoring
3 December Financial Affairs Committee Financing 
4 December Meeting of General Managers Leasing
4 December Leasing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Leasing
4 December Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
11 December Financial Affairs Committee Factoring
11 December Reporting Working Committee Meeting Leasing
12 December Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
12 December Legal Committee Meeting Factoring
12 December Operational Committee Meeting Financing 
13 December Law Symposium Preparation Meeting Leasing
18 December Legal Committee Meeting Financing 
19 December Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
19 December Leasing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Leasing
19 December Financing Sector Representatives Board Meeting Financing 
19 December AFI Board of Directors Meeting AFI
23 December Financial Affairs Committee Factoring
25 December Factoring Sector Representatives Board Meeting Factoring
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2019 Activities

MEETINGS WITH PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS

Date Explanation Sector
16 January Visit of Members of the Sector Representatives Board to Turk Eximbank Head Office AFI
11 February Financial Action Task Force (FATF) Evaluation Meetings with MASAK (Financial Crimes 

Investigation Board) 
AFI

18 February Eximbank Loan Signing Ceremony Leasing
21 February Meeting with the CBRT and Development and Investment Bank of Turkey Officials AFI
21-22 February Personal Data Protection Law (PDPL) Training in Ankara AFI
26 February Negotiations at the Ministry of Justice General Directorate of Legislation and Tax Inspection 

Department 
AFI

8 March Meeting with the to the Chairman of the Revenue Administration AFI
8 March Information Meeting on Our Regulation Requests at the Ministry of Treasury and Finance AFI
16 March MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board)-FATF Round IV Evaluation Meeting AFI
20 March Meeting with Representatives of Turkey Notaries Union on the Integration of the Movable 

Pledge Registry System (MPRS) and the Contract Registration System
AFI

22 March Turk Eximbank Meeting Factoring
22 March Meeting with the to the Chairman of the Revenue Administration AFI
22 March Meeting with Risk Center Management AFI
15 April T. R. Presidential Finance Office Meeting Factoring
26 April BRSA, Training Factoring
26 April T. R. Presidential Finance Office Meeting AFI
29 April Meeting on Draft Law on Financial Restructuring AFI
30 April BRSA Meeting AFI
3 May T. R. Presidential Finance Office Meeting AFI
10 May Meeting on Stamp Duty at the Revenue Administration Leasing
11-12 June İstanbul Finance Center Workshop AFI
12 June Risk Center Working Committee Meeting AFI
14 June Meeting at the AFI Head Office about Statistics Projects with the CBRT Representatives AFI
21 June Meeting with the Chairman of the Revenue Administration on the Stamp Duty Problems 

Encountered by Two Leasing Companies at the Notary Offices
Leasing

28 June Meeting with TURKKEP Registered Electronic Mail (KEP) Services AFI
2 July Meeting with Central Depositary of Turkey Representative at the General Directorate of 

Customs about the Digital Customs Project
Leasing

10 July Omnibus Law Discussions in the Parliamentary Plan and Budget Commission AFI
28-29 August Workshop on Public Leasing with Public Procurement Agency Representatives Leasing
2 September Visit to the CEOs of Turk Eximbank and the Investment and Development Bank of Turkey AFI
6 September CBRT Interest Statistics Training AFI
9 September Meeting with Mr. Hayrettin Kurt, the Chairman of MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation 

Board) 
AFI

9 September Visit to the Ministry of Commerce and the Ministry of Treasury and Finance AFI
10 September Meeting on Unregistering at the BRSA AFI
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Date Explanation Sector
11 September Meeting with the Presidency Strategy and Budget Presidency Representatives at the 

AFI Head Office on our Amendment Suggestions about Financial Institutions to the 11th 
Development Plan Action Plan 

AFI

12 September Meeting with the General Manager of the General Directorate of Financial Markets and 
Foreign Exchange, Ministry of Treasury and Finance, Mr. Murat Zaman

AFI

17 September Meeting with the Treasury and Finance Minister Advisor AFI
17 September Meeting with CBRT Governor Mr. Murat Uysal AFI
1 November Meeting with the Officials the General Directorate of Financial Markets and Foreign 

Exchange, Ministry of Treasury and Finance on the Treasury Backed Credit Guarantee 
System

AFI

8 November T. R. Presidential Finance Office Meeting Financing 
8 November Meeting at the TR. Presidential Finance Office on our Regulatory Proposals AFI
13 November Visit to the Head of the BRSA Audit III Department AFI
3 December MASAK (Financial Crimes Investigation Board)- AFI Workshop AFI
3 December Meeting with the President of the Competition Authority AFI
6 December Visit to Capital Markets Board Factoring
9 December Meeting with the CEO of Turk Eximbank AFI
19 December BRSA Meeting AFI
19 December National Employment Strategy Action Plan Meeting AFI

MEETINGS WITH INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Date Explanation Sector
15 January FCI Meeting Factoring
21 January EBRD Meeting Factoring
31 January EBRD Meeting Factoring
12 February FCI Meeting Factoring
14 February Meeting with FAMCA Fund Managers from Malaysia AFI
21 March Leaseurope CEO Business Council Meeting Leasing
15-16 May Leaseurope Secretary Generals Meeting Leasing
22 July Meeting with Al Huda Representative organizing Islamic Finance Training AFI
10 October Leaseurope General Assembly Leasing
10-11 October Leaseurope Annual, Congress Leasing
20-21 November International Leasing Conference Organized by Invigors Leasing
4-5 December Leaseurope Secretary Generals Meeting Leasing
9 December Sector Presentation to Ethiopian Leasing Executives Leasing
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2019 Activities

MEETINGS ATTENDED OR ORGANIZED

Date Explanation Sector
2 January Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
3 January Fibabanka, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
4 January Visit to Güneş Sigorta Assistant General Manager AFI
7 January TEDAR, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
9 January Visit of the Members of the Sector Representatives Board to the General Manager of the 

Credit Bureau of Turkey
Leasing

18 January Credit Bureau of Turkey, E-cheque Meeting Factoring
18 January Meeting with our Representative Member at the Risk Center Management AFI
24 January Faturampara Meeting Factoring
24 January Risk Center Control Targets Evaluation Meeting AFI
29 January Private Integrator Company Meeting Factoring
30 January Meeting with DRC Rating Leasing
1 February Digital Transformation Company Meeting Factoring
5 February Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
6 February Private Integrator Company Meeting Factoring
7 February Central Securities Depository of Turkey (MKK) Meeting Factoring
8 February Faturampara Meeting Factoring
11 February Halk Sigorta, Meeting on State Supported Receivable Insurance Factoring
14 February Halkbank, CRR Meeting Factoring
27 February Central Securities Depository of Turkey (MKK) Meeting Factoring
28 February Digital Transformation Company Meeting Factoring
6 March Cybersoft, Undocumented Export Credit Integration Meeting Factoring
8 March Cybersoft, Undocumented Export Credit Integration Meeting Factoring
15 March CRR Technical Software Meeting Factoring
18 March Cybersoft, Undocumented Export Credit Integration Meeting Factoring
18 March Faturampara Meeting Factoring
19 March Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
22 March Halk Sigorta, Meeting on State Supported Receivable Insurance Factoring
25 March Cybersoft, Undocumented Export Credit Integration Meeting Factoring
28 March Mediation Symposium with the Ministry of Justice AFI
1 April Faturampara Meeting Factoring
2 April VakıfBank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
5 April Personal Data Protection Law (PDPL) Software Meeting Factoring
11 April Halk Sigorta, Meeting on State Supported Receivable Insurance Factoring
12 April Faturampara Meeting Factoring
16 April Emlak Participation Bank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
16 April Halk Sigorta, Meeting on State Supported Receivable Insurance Factoring
16 April VakıfBank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
19 April Credit Bureau of Turkey, CRR Meeting Factoring
25 April EY IT Seminar AFI
25 April Emlak Participation Bank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
25 April Central Software Company Meeting Factoring
26 April Faturampara Meeting Factoring
30 April Halkbank, Halk Faktoring, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
30 April ING Bank, CRR Meeting Factoring
2 May Faturampara Meeting Factoring
2 May Private Integrators Board Meeting Factoring
6 May Supply-Chain Finance Introductory Meeting Factoring
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Date Explanation Sector
7 May Visit to the Notaries Union AFI
9 May Halkbank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
10 May VakıfBank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
13 May Credit Bureau of Turkey Meeting Factoring
14 May Emlak Participation Bank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
17 May Credit Bureau of Turkey Meeting Factoring
20 May Meeting at the Banks Association of Turkey on the Capital Movement Circular AFI
20 May Iftar Dinner with TİAD Leasing
22 May Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
22 May Risk Center Working Committee Meeting at the Banks Association of Turkey AFI
23 May Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
24 May Financial Action Task Force (FATF) Evaluation Meeting with the FATF - MASAK (Financial 

Crimes Investigation Board) and Financial Sector Representatives Hosted by the Banks 
Association of Turkey 

AFI

24 May VakıfBank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
13 June Risk Center Working Committee Meeting at the Banks Association of Turkey AFI
17 June KPMG's IT Seminar at AFI Head Office AFI
24 June Türkiye Finans Participation Bank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
28 June Central Software Company Meeting Factoring
2 July Supply-Chain Finance Introductory Meeting Factoring
3 July Meeting at the Construction Equipment Distributors and Manufacturers Association-IMDER 

on the Establishment of a Leasing Sector Assembly at the Union of Chambers and Commodity 
Exchanges of Turkey (TOBB) 

Leasing

4 July Meeting with Board Members of Risk Managers Association AFI
8 July Credit Bureau of Turkey, CRR Meeting Factoring
11 July Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
11 July Meeting with the software company Cybersoft Leasing
12 July Türkiye Finans Participation Bank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
16 July Credit Bureau of Turkey, CRR Meeting Factoring
24 July Credit Insurance Company Meeting Factoring
25 July Albaraka Türk Participation Bank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
26 July Meeting with TCMA About the Capital Markets Congress AFI
1 August Anadolubank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
1 August Visit to Central Depository of Turkey (MKK) General Manager Mr. Ekrem Arıkan and Takasbank 

General Manager Mr. Gökhan Elibol 
AFI

8 August Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
8 August Meeting at Banks Association of Turkey on Financial Restructuring Framework Agreement AFI
19 August Meeting at Banks Association of Turkey on Financial Restructuring Framework Agreement AFI
20 August Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
21 August IT Survey Planning with PwC AFI
23 August Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
27 August Central Securities Depository of Turkey (MKK) Meeting Factoring
28 August IFC Meeting Factoring
2 September Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
3 September Banks Association of Turkey - International Rating Companies Meeting AFI
5 September Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
6 September Türkiye Finans Participation Bank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
12 September Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
13 September KPMG IT Audits Seminar AFI
18 September VakıfBank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
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2019 Activities

Date Explanation Sector
20 September Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
24 September VakıfBank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
26 September Credit Bureau of Turkey Meeting Factoring
27 September Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
30 September Cybersoft, Undocumented Export Credit Integration Meeting Factoring
30 September VakıfBank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
1 October ICBC, CRR Meeting Factoring
1 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
1 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
2 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
2 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
3 October Türkiye Finans Participation Bank, CRR Meeting Factoring
7 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
8 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
8 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
9 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
9 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
10 October Cybersoft, Undocumented Export Credit Integration Meeting Factoring
11 October Credit Bureau of Turkey Meeting Factoring
11 October Supply-Chain Finance Introductory Meeting Factoring
16 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
17 October FCI Meeting Factoring
17 October ING Bank, CRR Meeting Factoring
21 October Borsa İstanbul Meeting Factoring
22 October Private Integrator Company Meeting Factoring
23 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
25 October Cybersoft, Undocumented Export Credit Integration Meeting Factoring
28 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
30 October Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
4 November Supply-Chain Finance Introductory Meeting Factoring
5 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
6 November Corporate Communications Agency Meeting Factoring
6 November Meeting with Central Securities Depository of Turkey (MKK) on Service Procurement for 

Shared Data Center and System Infrastructure 
AFI

6 November Central Securities Depository of Turkey (MKK) Meeting Factoring
6 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
6 November Private Integrator Company Meeting Factoring
7 November Meeting with Softtech, an İşbank Group company, on Joint Leasing Software Leasing
11 November Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
11 November Supply-Chain Finance Introductory Meeting Factoring
12 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
12 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
13 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
14 November Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
14 November Document Management System Software Meeting Factoring
15 November Digital Transformation Company Meeting Factoring
15 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
15 November Personal Data Protection Law (PDPL) Workshop organized by The Banks Association of Turkey AFI
19 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
19 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
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Date Explanation Sector
19 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
19 November Private Integrator Company Meeting Factoring
22 November Meeting with Architecht Software Company on Digital Transformation AFI
22 November Roundtable Meeting with the Leadership of Invigors on Leasing Sector Leasing
22 November Central Software Company Meeting Factoring
22 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
22 November Private Integrator Company Meeting Factoring
25 November Leasing and Factoring Training to Kültür University Students AFI
26 November Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
28 November Alternatifbank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
28 November Meeting with Architecht Software Company on Digital Transformation AFI
28 November Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
28 November Central Software Company Meeting Factoring
28 November Supply-Chain Finance Introductory Meeting Factoring
29 November Turkey 2023 Finance Summit AFI
2 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
2 December VakıfBank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
3 December Document Management System Software Meeting Factoring
3 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
4 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
4 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
4 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
5 December AFI Introductory Meeting Afyon Kocatepe University AFI
5 December Credit Insurance Company Meeting Factoring
5 December Central Securities Depository of Turkey (MKK) Meeting Factoring
5 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
9 December Faturampara Meeting Factoring
9 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
10 December Akbank AG, CRR Meeting Factoring
10 December Alternatifbank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
10 December Halkbank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
11 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
11 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
11 December Meeting with Prof. Turgut Öz Regarding Legal Opinion on Applications of Obligations Law Leasing
16 December Product Safety Workshop with General Directorate of Product Safety and Control Leasing
17 December Credit Bureau of Turkey Meeting Factoring
17 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
17 December AFI Introductory Meeting, Antakya Mustafa Kemal University AFI
18 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
20 December Document Management System Software Meeting Factoring
20 December IFC Meeting Factoring
23 December Cybersoft, Trade Chain Finance System Integration Meeting Factoring
24 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
24 December Vakıf Participation Bank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
25 December VakıfBank, Supply-Chain Finance Meeting Factoring
26 December Central Software Company Meeting Factoring
26 December TNB Electronic Information Sharing Protocol Meeting AFI
27 December Shared Data Center Company Meeting Factoring
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Regulatory Changes in 2019

Date Description Sector
25 January 
26 February

Regulation on the Establishment and Operating Principles of Financial Leasing, Factoring and 
Finance Companies

Leasing & 
Finance

1 February Regulation Amending the Regulation on the Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of 
Financial Leasing, Factoring and Finance Companies

Leasing & 
Factoring & 
Finance

1 February Communiqué Amending the Communiqué on the Uniform Chart of Accounts to be Implemented by 
Financial Leasing, Factoring and Finance Companies and Its Explanation 

Leasing & 
Factoring & 
Finance

1 February Communiqué on Amending the Communiqué on Uniform Chart of Accounts and Explanations Leasing & 
Factoring & 
Finance

10 February Regulation on the Establishment and Operating Principles of Financial Leasing, Factoring and 
Finance Companies 

Leasing & 
Finance

3 March 
31 August

Communiqué No: 2019-32/53 Amending the Communiqué No: 2018-32/48 (on Exports Proceeds) 
Concerning the Decree No. 32 on the Protection of the Value of Turkish Currency 

Factoring

6 April Communiqué on Management and Control of Information Systems of Financial Leasing, Factoring 
and Financing Companies

Leasing & 
Factoring & 
Finance

22 June Communiqué (No: 2019/11) Amending the Communiqué on Required Reserves (No: 2013/15) Finance
19 July Law Amending the Income Tax Law and Some Laws Leasing & 

Factoring & 
Finance

1 August Regulation Amending the Regulation on the Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of 
Financial Leasing, Factoring and Finance Companies

Leasing & 
Factoring & 
Finance

1 August Regulation on Uniform Account Plan Leasing & 
Factoring & 
Finance

27 October Regulation Amending the Regulation on the Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of 
Financial Leasing, Factoring and Finance Companies

Leasing & 
Factoring & 
Finance

27 October Regulation Amending the Regulation on the Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of 
Financial Leasing, Factoring and Finance Companies

Leasing & 
Factoring & 
Finance

27 October Regulation Amending the Regulation on the Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of 
Financial Leasing, Factoring and Finance Companies

Leasing & 
Factoring & 
Finance
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CERTIFICATE PROGRAMS, TRAININGS 
AND SEMINARS

In 2019, 78 training programs were 
offered in a total of 125 days, and 900 
participants attended these trainings. 

Trainings were offered under the “Basic 
Expertise in Financial Institutions 
Certification Program” which was 
launched after a protocol signed by AFI 
and Marmara University Continuing 
Education Center (MUSEM) in November 
2014. These trainings were delivered 
by faculty members from Marmara 
University and volunteer market 
professionals with training experience 
from financial leasing, factoring and 
financing companies. Participants who 
are successful at the exams after 18 
days of training receive certificates from 
Marmara University and AFI. A total of 
110 participants were qualified in these 
certificate programs that have been 
organized for four years in a row. 

The students who started the certificate 
program in the last semester of the 
previous year received their certificates 
in January from the BRSA Vice Chairman 
Mehmet İrfan Kurt and the members of 
our Board of Directors.

Trainers: Faculty members from Marmara 
University - Dr. Ahmet Başcı, Prof. Dr. Ali 
Köse Doç. Dr. Gökhan Işıl, Assoc. Prof. 
Güçlü Okay, Assoc. Prof. Gülcan Çağıl, 
Assoc. Prof. Halil İbrahim Alpaslan, Prof. 
Dr. Mehmet Melemen, Prof. Dr. Özgür 
Çatıkkaş, Assoc. Prof. Seher Tezergil, Dr. 
Seniha Dal

Industry Volunteer Trainers: Arda Demir, 
Can Özyurt, Ekrem Yavrucuk, Kayıhan 
Hasırcı, Kudret Ünsal, Murat Türker, 
Nilgün Yılmaz

PERCEPTION MANAGEMENT AND 
PERSONAL BRANDING

The training underlines the importance 
of each manager of an organization in 
making a contribution to brand equity, 
and steers managers to play an active 
role towards this target. Customized 
according to each organization in line 
with corporate values and corporate 
communication targets, the training 
covers such headings as representing 
the organization in formal circles; 
communications with professional 
associations and nongovernmental 
organizations; and development in key 
account relationships.

Trainer: Seçil Şendağ

NEURO-LINGUISTIC PROGRAMMING (NLP)

NLP (Neuro Linguistic Programming) 
deals with how we generate our personal 
experiences, how we create our thoughts 
and moods, and how we build our inner 
world based on our experiences, and how 
we make sense of it.

Trainer: Ayşegül Ekmekçioğlu

COSO INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM IN 
NON-BANK FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The training covers the relevant 
regulations of international organizations 
such as the COSO Committee, The 
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), 
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners 
(ACFE), and of the Banking Regulation 
and Supervision Agency (BRSA) from 
our country. The program is intended to 
consolidate the Three Lines of Defense 
Model. The training objectives also 
include the assimilation of the subject by 
participants through the application of 

the subject specific to non-bank financial 
institutions, sample bank designs 
and implementations following the 
completion of the theoretical framework. 
Thus, it is aimed to help the participants 
bring the knowledge and skills they have 
acquired in the training along with these 
experiences to the organizations they 
work for. 

Trainer: Dr. Cengiz Doğru

BRSA IT AUDIT LEGISLATION

The Communiqué on the Information 
Systems Management and Audit 
of Financial Leasing, Factoring and 
Financing Companies published on 
6 April 2019 sets out the procedures 
and principles for the management of 
the information systems the related 
companies use in the performance of 
their activities falling under the Financial 
Leasing, Factoring and Financing 
Companies Law no. 6361 and their 
auditing by authorized independent 
auditors. In meetings held in cooperation 
with KPMG, the new requirements 
introduced by the BRSA IT Legislation and 
BRSA Legislation Technical Specifications 
were addressed, analyzed and members’ 
questions were responded to.

Speakers: Sinem Cantürk, Bengisu 
Özgehan, Didem Tarhan, Hakan Erçin

INFORMATION SECURITY CONTROLS AND 
INFORMATION SECURITY MANAGEMENT 

The program objective was to equip 
participants with the capability to 
perform activities necessary to fulfill 
information security requirements 
specified in the BRSA Communiqué on 
Principles to be Considered in Information 
Systems Management in Banks as a 
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requirement of Risk Center membership, 
to achieve compliance with information 
system audit requirements and to meet 
enterprise information security needs. 

Trainer: Fatih Emiral 

MINDFULNESS 

Upon completion of the training, 
participants are anticipated to contribute 
to their own self-development and 
be able to motivate themselves and 
their teams. To do that, first of all, the 
importance and methods of staying in the 
moment are given; exercises are made 
to make the feeling motivational, and 
efforts are spent to increase resilience 
to handle challenges and to make action 
plans to leave one’s comfort zone.

Trainer: Elif Tokman

BORROWING INSTRUMENTS AND 
CORPORATE BOND ISSUANCE PROCESS

The training dwells on borrowing 
instruments and their technical 
characteristics within the context of 
the Capital Market Law no. 6362 and 
applicable legislation, and also deals with 
the operating rules of the Debt Securities 
Market of Borsa İstanbul, and first/
second hand market processes for these 
financial assets. 

Trainer: Dr. Murad Kayacan

PROCEDURES TO BE FOLLOWED IN 
TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING CHECKS AND 
IMPORTANT CONSIDERATIONS 

The training primarily deals with 
important considerations in domestic 
factoring transactions for which checks 
are received as a payment instrument. 

Trainer: Ebru Atasoy Akalın

TRENDS IN DATA ANALYTICS, BIG DATA 
AND ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE

The training is intended to share the 
necessary steps for acquiring data-driven 
competitive edge, creating value, and 
developing profitable business models 
in line with a corporate roadmap and 
strategic plan with the participants. 
Successful implementations and case 
studies are used in the training to 
address how big data and artificial 
intelligence that are among the major 
technology trends of our day influence 
everyday life and how they should 
be correctly integrated into business 
life and used, and the impact of these 
technologies upon financial institutions 
and the sector.

Trainer: Ergi Şener - Erim Yağcı

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION AND 
TECHNOLOGY TRENDS THAT 
TRANSFORM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Technology and technology-driven 
innovations in business models 
bear various impacts on numerous 
sectors. While the finance sector and 
financial institutions digitalize rapidly 
in connection with the advancing 
technologies, acquiring new customers, 
increasing sales and turnover, and 
achieving sustainable growth remain 
as key priorities. On the other hand, 
consumers tend to get confused because 
of the constantly growing competition 
in the finance sector, the effect of 
increasing and diversifying channels, and 
payment applications that continually 
increase also owing to the mobile. 
Nonetheless, the change also entails 
important opportunities.

With technology, the existing systems 
and processes are replaced by models 
developed by more agile companies 
and start-ups. Some examples include 
Airbnb in the lodging sector, Uber 
and Lyft in the transportation sector, 
Amazon in the retail sector, Netflix in 
the broadcasting sector, WhatsApp in 
messaging applications, and Tesla in the 
automotive industry. These applications 
seriously threaten conventional sectors 
and customary products, services and 
brands.

Companies that succeed in digital 
transformation correctly understand 
customer needs, provide effective 
solutions to problems, test the solutions 
with the customers, and are able to 
offer better products and services. In the 
process, concepts such as lean start-up, 
minimum viable product (MVP), business 
model canvas, and design thinking come 
to the foreground. 

The training objectives include studying 
technological trends and business 
models that trigger digital transformation 
and analyzing its dimension while 
examining the applications that are 
capable of making a difference on the 
basis of successful digitalization, and 
sharing the steps that are necessary 
for creating a corporate roadmap and 
strategic plan towards digitalization.

Trainer: Ergi Şener - Erim Yağcı

UNDERSTANDING THE ECONOMY AND 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – FINANCE FOR 
THE LAYMAN

In keeping with the growing importance 
of finance for businesses, first of all, 
rules and main processes of bookkeeping 
are examined by taking basic economic 
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concepts as the starting point, after 
which financial statements and their 
importance from the standpoint of 
stakeholders are addressed. Finally, 
the program dwells upon basic analysis 
methods, which are among the main 
functions of financial science, and 
discusses the tasks and responsibilities 
of finance professionals.

Trainer: Dr. Murad Kayacan

INDUSTRY 4.0 AND ADJUSTING TO 
CHANGE 

The world is changing rapidly; digital 
transformation and Industry 4.0 are 
deeply affecting the business world. 
New terms such as smart robots, internet 
of things (IoT), big data, blockchain, 
chatbot, and digital marketing began to 
make themselves a place in our everyday 
lives. How will this technological 
transformation affect our business, our 
sector? How and in which direction will it 
lead? What will we be doing when change 
arrives?

In this training program, participants will; 

1. learn new information about the ways 
the business world and the finance 
sector are affected by technological 
transformation, and gain awareness 
that they themselves need to leave 
their comfort zones and accommodate 
themselves to change;

2. confront their own feelings about 
change, acquire new skills for managing 
how they feel about it, for changing the 
way they think in order to act proactively, 
and for gaining resilience.

Trainer: Aylin Demiray Özden

EARLY WARNING SIGNALS AND NON-
PERFORMING LOANS 

The objective of the program was to 
provide participants a new perspective 
to set up early warning systems to 
support an effective monitoring 
process, systematic approach skills to 
easily capture changes in risk level of 
companies and develop proper strategies. 
8 people participated in the training.

Trainer: Yenal Koçak

FACTORING PRODUCTS

The objective of the training was to 
evaluate services provided in factoring 
industry and increase product variety.

Trainer: Can Özyurt

FACTORING TRANSACTIONS 

The training focuses on control points 
within factoring transaction processes 
and regulatory requirements.

Trainer: Nilgün Yılmaz

MARKET RESEARCH AND FINANCE 
ANALYTICS IN THE FINANCIAL SECTOR 

The training provides information about 
the research design necessary for 
conducting market research particularly 
in the financial sector and for correctly 
approaching the customers from the 
viewpoint of researchers. The program 
also deals with the financial analysis 
techniques that are important for gaining 
insight into customers following the 
research.

Trainer: Assoc. Prof. Mehmet Nuri İnel

PROCESS MANAGEMENT AND 
PRODUCTIVITY IN THE FINANCIAL 
SECTOR 

The training dwells upon the process 
concept for designing processes targeted 
at operational efficiency that will bring 
cost advantages in the financial sector. 
It deals with process improvement 
perspective and techniques, which will 
resolve the problems in the process to 
ensure continuous improvement and 
ensure competitive superiority.

Trainer: Assoc. Prof. Mehmet Nuri İnel

TAX ARRANGEMENTS AND PRACTICES IN 
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

The training is intended to enable 
member companies to study details in 
relation to various taxation matters such 
as Basic Taxes, Corporate Tax Return, 
Loss Netting, Discounts, Double Taxation 
Agreements, Transfer Pricing and the like. 

Trainer: Oğuz Kemal Bulut, Certified 
Public Accountant

ACCOUNTING FOR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS 

In this training program, accounting 
rules and practices applicable for 
financial leasing, factoring and financing 
companies were discussed within the 
framework of BRSA Uniform Chart 
of Accounts and Applications. In this 
context, participants received detailed 
information on accounting applications 
of their institutions and their financial 
statements. Backed by real-life examples, 
the training adopts basic theory and 
detailed practice approach.

During the training program, participants 
learn hands-on about the fundamental 
principles and functions of accounting 
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for financial institutions, systematics 
of accounting, applications of Uniform 
Chart of Accounts, how accounting 
records are kept in financial institution 
transactions, and how accounting for 
financial institutions are transformed 
into financial statement presentations 
on the basis of the Turkish Financial 
Reporting Standards.

Trainer: Oğuz Kemal Bulut, Certified 
Public Accountant

FINANCIAL MATHEMATICS 

The program targeted training the 
participants so that they would be able 
to perform the necessary financial 
calculations, independent of systems, 
to provide their clients with detailed 
information about cost computation 
methods, to make comparisons using 
alternative pricing techniques, and to 
offer consultancy to clients regarding 
alternative financial products, when 
necessary and to enhance the quality 
of service provided to customers. The 
training was held twice. 

Trainer: Yenal Koçak

USING EXCEL IN FINANCIAL MODELING 
AND SIMULATION

The training will basically explain how 
financial modeling will be made using 
Excel and give some Excel formulas 
that can be used in the creation of 
scenario analyses. It is a practice-based 
training that also touches upon the 
simulation concept in addition to usage 
of some formulas employed in financial 
management and assessment of 
investment projects within Excel.

Trainer: Assoc. Prof. Mehmet Nuri İnel

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AT COMPANIES (READING FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS MADE EASY)

Financial statements are results derived 
from various accounting movements that 
show the financial status of a business 
at a given time. Financial statements of 
a company are usually complicated and 
even incomprehensible for people who 
are not directly involved in this task. 
The training is intended to equip the 
participants with sufficient knowledge 
to let them evaluate the position of a 
company based on the data provided 
in financial statements, to read these 
statements in general terms, to compare 
the past and the future, and to detect 
signals of a threat, if any. The training 
describes the methods used in the 
analysis of financial statements and 
provides case studies with real data.

Trainer: Assistant Prof. Bülent Günceler

SENSITIVITY TRAINING WORKSHOP

The goal of the workshop is to make the 
participants more aware of themselves, 
and to increase efficiency through role-
playing and storytelling activities.

Trainer: Aytül Vatansever

PERSUASIVE PRESENTATION AND 
“GETTING DATA TO TALK”

Briefly touching upon sales techniques, 
the training also dwells upon persuasion 
techniques and targets to teach how 
a decision can be reversed through an 
effective presentation not just in the 
sales process of a product or service, 
but also in social life. The training also 
aims to provide information about how 
data can be presented more effectively, 
in other words, how one can get data to 

talk. Additionally, the program holistically 
addresses such topics as negotiation, 
group decisions, and team management 
in the communications of the so-called 
internal customers, i.e. individuals working 
towards the same goal, and seeks to teach 
the necessary information for rendering 
internal communication within an 
organization effective and efficient.

Trainer: Assoc. Prof. Mehmet Nuri İnel

ADVANCED MICROSOFT EXCEL

The objectives of the Advanced Excel 
Training were to increase efficiency by 
building on advanced skills for using 
Microsoft Excel program, and to ensure 
efficient use of Excel in reporting and 
data analyses. This training was intended 
for employees who work in reporting and 
controlling functions as well as those 
who want to improve their Excel skills. 

Trainer: Kerim Bağrıyanık 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ANALYTICS 

The training aimed to approach business 
development concept from different 
aspects and provide information on what 
it is and how to manage it, to define 
business analytics concept, discuss 
various types and how to use business 
analytics for business development 
through real life cases. 

Trainer: Assoc. Prof. Mehmet Nuri İnel, 
Lecturer

BUSINESS LAW

The training is intended to provide 
detailed information about the problems 
encountered particularly in practice, and 
to contribute to the efficacy of business 
law and to qualified human resource in 
this field. 

Trainer: Atty. Murat Keçeciler 
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PROFITABILITY AND PRICING 
TECHNIQUES

The training is developed to provide 
an understanding of increasing an 
organization’s profitability by employing 
the methods of complete determination 
of basic and total costs through analyzing 
the company’s financials; and strategic 
pricing techniques by including the effect 
of maturity, inflation and market risks, as 
well as pricing techniques.

Trainer: Uğur İşbilir

COMPARATIVE AND APPLIED 
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS (IFRS) AND TURKISH 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (TAS)

The training covered financial statements 
and disclosures, presentation of financial 
statements, balance sheet, income 
statement, cash flow statement, interim 
financial statements, first application 
of IFRS on financial statements, events 
after the balance sheet date, related 
party standard, non-current assets held 
for sale and discontinued operations, 
consolidation (with comprehensive 
examples), calculation of minority 
interest, consolidation goodwill, 
inventory, property, plant and equipment, 
depreciation methods, intangible assets, 
provisions, tax accounting and deferred 
taxes, employee benefits, profit/loss and 
equity, sales, earnings per share, financial 
instruments, financial assets and 
measurement, derivative instruments, 
borrowing costs and leasing transactions.

Trainer: Oğuz Kemal Bulut, Certified 
Public Accountant 

CREDIT MONITORING AND PROCESS 
MANAGEMENT IN SMEs AND TRADE 
COMPANIES

The training is designed to equip the 
participants with the skills to evaluate 
past performances of small enterprises 
using financial and non-financial data, 
and to project their forward-looking 
needs and debt payment capabilities.

Trainer: Yenal Koçak

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the training is to enable 
assessment of the role and importance 
of effective risk management, which is 
a corporate governance requirement 
for companies, in view of current 
developments with respect to the 
risk exposure of a given company and 
the impact of such risks. For financial 
institutions, the aim is to help create a 
perspective that will enable assessment 
of company governance risks within the 
framework of risk management activities 
and practices during the credit risk 
assessment of a given firm.

Trainer: Dr. Selda Eke

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The objective of the training was to give 
an understanding of various subjects like 
credits, getting to know the company 
and preparing a company introduction 
report, reading the balance sheet, income 
statement and trial balance, uniform chart 
of accounts and accounting practices, 
transfers/removals performed at financial 
analysis, financial analysis techniques 
and ratios, analyses of contracting firms 
and determination of credit limits, lending 
terms and collaterals which take place 
within the allocation process. 

Trainer: Hüseyin Ünlü

MASAK 

A training was organized intended 
to raise increased awareness of the 
Association members regarding MASAK 
(Financial Crimes Investigation Board) 
obligations and effective notification of 
suspicious transactions.

Trainer: Banu Okumuş and Faruk Mutlu

MINDFULNESS

Focusing on the benefits of mindfulness, 
the module entails challenge 
management, resilience, mental and 
physical exercises. Upon completion of 
the training, it is intended to help the 
participants contribute to their self-
development and be able to motivate 
themselves and their teams.

Trainer: Elif Tokman

FINANCIAL CALCULATIONS IN MICROSOFT 
EXCEL

The aim is to increase the use of Excel, 
which is an effective analysis tool. The 
main headings of the training include 
financial math applications, evaluation 
of investment projects, loan repayment 
calculation tools, statistical analyses, and 
advanced finance applications.

Trainer: Kerim Bağrıyanık 

MICROSOFT EXCEL - BASICS

The program intended to teach 
performing basic operations with 
Microsoft Excel. 

Trainer: Kerim Bağrıyanık 
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FEEDBACK IN PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT 

The training discusses motivation 
through effective feedback, 
understanding the value of feedback, 
methods for using feedback in self-
development and action plans, and the 
ways to deal with challenges involved in 
the process.

Trainer: Gülnur Yetkin

POWERPOINT

The training is intended to teach all 
the features of PowerPoint for creating 
effective presentations, for conveying 
the intended messages correctly and 
simply.

Trainer: Kerim Bağrıyanık 

SALES AND FINANCE ANALYTICS 

The training describes how analytics 
and creative thinking can be used in the 
sales process within the framework of 
decision-making, and talks about the 
unison of sales and finance through 
analytics. Analysis suggestions that can 
be made strategically during the sales 
process and how the process needs to be 
managed in sales surveys are given on 
process-basis. Dealing with the finance 
concept within the frame of finance and 
sales duo, and briefly touching upon 
financial analysis methods, the training 
also entails games.

Trainer: Assoc. Prof. Mehmet Nuri İnel

NON-PERFORMING LOANS AND EARLY 
WARNING SYSTEMS

The training is targeted to equip the 
participants with a perspective that will 
help them set up early warning systems 
to support an effective monitoring 
process, and with systematic approach 
skills that will help them easily identify 
any changes in riskiness and develop 
strategies accordingly.

Trainer: Yenal Koçak

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS IN NON-
PERFORMING LOANS, PRACTICAL 
INFORMATION ABOUT EXECUTION, 
BANKRUPTCY AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
LAW

The objective of the training is to give a 
legal perspective regarding the actions to 
be taken for speeding up the collection 
of bad debts in financial leasing, 
factoring and financing companies and 
for managing the process smoothly. In 
this context, practical information is 
provided about the types of lawsuits 
and proceedings to reflect the latest 
regulatory changes, and the problems in 
practice are addressed in an interactive 
fashion.

Trainer: Atty. Emel Tezcan

IMPORTANT CONSIDERATIONS IN 
THE PREPARATION AND CONTROL 
OF CONTRACTS, COLLATERALS AND 
PROMISSORY NOTES

The training is organized for all sector 
professionals interested in the topic. 
The objective of the training is to make 
sure that financial leasing agreements 
and payment notes are issued so as 
to preclude any future risks. 17 people 
participated in the training.

Trainer: Atty. Emel Tezcan 

TEAM ROLES

The training touches upon the value of 
being a team, the common characteristics 
of effective teams, and team dynamics, 
followed by the four stages of being 
a team. Finally, the topics addressed 
in the training are put into practice 
and reinforced within the frame of a 
workshop.

Trainer: Elif Tokman 

CBRT INTEREST RATE STATISTICS

Following brief information about the 
organization and objectives of the CBRT 
Statistics Department, the duties of 
the divisions, the statistics produced, 
and Electronic Data Delivery System (in 
Turkish: EVDS), information was provided 
about the forms collected from financing 
companies for gathering loan rate 
statistics, and the notifications received 
therefrom were assessed. In addition, 
reporting methods were discussed.

Speakers: Birgül Ceylan, Head of Data 
Management Division; Merve Yıldız 
and Onur Koca, Assistant Specialists of 
Monitoring, Interest Rate and Risk 

CBRT MONETARY POLICY AND THE 
IMPORTANCE OF ANALYTICAL BALANCE 
SHEET FROM THE STANDPOINT OF 
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The training is intended to follow up and 
interpret the trend of market variables 
(interest rates, exchange rates, prices) 
based on the Central Bank of the Republic 
of Turkey (CBRT) Monetary Policy 
Committee decisions and the CBRT’s 
analytical balance sheet 

Trainer: Dr. Cengiz Doğru
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THE FORMULA FOR PERSUASION OVER 
THE PHONE

The training deals with the tricks of 
maintaining a healthy communication 
over the phone, when one is not face 
to face with an internal or external 
customer, and discusses the methods of 
persuading over the phone. 

Trainer: Aytül Vatansever

COLLATERAL AND PROCEEDINGS LAW

The training provides information about 
the detailed legal aspects to participants 
who are or will be involved in requiring, 
creating, following-up and controlling 
collaterals by discussing the solutions 
of problems encountered in practice and 
real-life experiences. The programs also 
seeks to convey the rules of Proceedings 
Law that will be applied when it becomes 
necessary to take legal action, through 
schematic comparisons of methods by 
actions and within the frame of a cause-
and-effect relationship.

Trainer: Atty. Emel Tezcan

THE ART OF ELOQUENT SPEAKING AND 
EXECUTIVE PRESENCE

The Art of Eloquent Speaking and 
Executive Presence is a highly interactive 
training addressed within the context 
of presentation and speaking. The 
training covers all aspects of speaking 
including those during a teleconference, 
board meetings or simply at a cocktail or 
networking event. 

Trainer: Raj Kumar

MEDIATION AS A CAUSE OF ACTION IN 
COMMERCIAL DISPUTES SEMINAR

With its opening speeches delivered by 
Mr. Umut İlhan Durmuşoğlu, Ministry 
of Justice, Director of Mediation 
Department, and Mr. Adem Duman, 
AFI Chairman, the Seminar provided an 
introduction to Mediation as a Cause of 
Action in Commercial Disputes, its Scope, 
Applicability and Practices of Mediation 
as a Cause of Action in Commercial 
Disputes with the presentations of Mr. 
İlker Koçyiğit, Ankara Regional Court of 
Appeal, Head of the Third Civil Chamber 
and Mr. Alper Bulur, Hacettepe University, 
Faculty of Law Lecturer.

REFRAME YOUR ATTITUDE (RESILIENCE)

The objective of the seminar is to provide 
a roadmap for the attitudes we will 
adopt in various experiences we have. 
While seeking to answer the question 
“how does emotional intelligence make a 
difference in an experience”, it also draws 
the communication cycle based on the 
perception of empathy position and the 
roadmap to solution.

Trainer: Elif Tokman

TURKISH AND GLOBAL ECONOMY: 
INDICATORS AND DEVELOPMENTS 

The training is intended to help make 
a more accurate prediction of the 
future conjuncture of the Turkish and 
global economy. Within this frame, key 
macroeconomic and financial figures 
such as growth, inflation, interest rates, 
parity ratios, gold and commodity prices 
were discussed using current data. 

Trainer: Prof. Erhan Aslanoğlu

IFRS 9 AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

In the seminar co-organized with KPMG, 
general information was provided 
about IFRS 9, followed by information 
on IFRS 9 taxation implementation and 
hedge accounting, and the questions of 
participants were answered.

Speakers: Sinem Cantürk, Kerem Vardar, 
Hakan Güzeloğlu

LEADERSHIP FOR MANAGERS 
(STRATEGIC BEHAVIOR)

Focusing on the skills that a team leader 
needs to possess, the training raises 
an awareness of the characteristics of 
inspirational leadership, differences 
between a leader and a manager, 
the importance of proactivity in 
business management, time & stress 
management, identification of obstacles 
against team performance, creation of 
action plans to overcome obstacles, and 
team coaching skills.

Trainer: Arzu Baran

WHO IS A DIFFICULT PERSON, WHO IS A 
DIFFICULT CUSTOMER?

It is important to deal with the 
problems occurring when working and 
communicating with difficult people. 
This will let us use our time and energy 
efficiently. Difficult people are those 
who upset us, who make us feel restless, 
helpless, exhausted and even angry. 
During the program, participants get to 
know themselves and types of different 
people, learn about how to communicate 
in order to deal with difficult behaviors, 
emotional intelligence, awareness and 
empathizing. Participants also experience 
how teams that are part of a chain 
effectively manage crises.

Trainer: Fatma Meriç Demirel
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 General Evaluation     Trainer Evaluation     Number of ParticipantsResults of Training Evaluation Surveys

Using Excel in Financial Modeling and Simulation

Turkish and Global Economy: Indicators and Developments

Comparative and Applied IFRS and TAS

Financial Analysis

Industry 4.0 and Adjusting to Change

Financial Calculations in Microsoft Excel

Taxation in Financial Institutions

Borrowing Instruments and Corporate Bond Issuance Process

Enterprise Risk Management

Perceptional Behavior Control

Legal Proceedings in Non-Performing Loans 
Mediation as a Cause of Action in Commercial Disputes 

Seminar
Information Security Controls and Information Security 

Management - Introduction
Information Security Controls and Information Security 

Management
Factoring Products

Understanding the Economy and Financial Statements 
Financial Reporting Standards and Analysis of Financial 

Statements at Companies 
IFRS 9 and Hedge Accounting

Accounting for Financial Institutions

Reframe Your Attitude (Resilience)

Perception Management and Personal Branding

Advanced Microsoft Excel

BRSA IT Audit Legislation - KPMG

CBRT Interest Rate Statistics

Financial Analysis

Factoring Transactions

Process Management and Productivity in the Financial Sector

Comparative and Applied IFRS 

MASAK

Financial Mathematics
Digital Transformation and Technology Trends That Transform 

Financial Institutions
Mindfulness

Legal Proceedings in Non-Performing Loans 

Business Development Analytics
CBRT Monetary Policy and the Importance of Analytical 

Balance Sheet from the Standpoint of Financial Institutions
Tax Arrangements and Practices in Financial Institutions

Advanced Microsoft Excel

Understanding the Economy and Financial Statements 

Collateral and Proceedings Law
Procedures to Be Followed in Transactions Involving Cheques 

and Important Considerations
Accounting for Financial Institutions

Early Warning Signals and Non-Performing Loans

Market Research and Finance Analytics in the Financial Sector

Trends in Data Analytics, Big Data and Artificial Intelligence
COSO Internal Control System in Non-Bank Financial 

Institutions
Information Security Controls and Information Security 

Management
Neuro-Linguistic Programming (NLP)

Financial and Statistical Calculations in Microsoft Excel

The Art of Eloquent Speaking and Executive Presence

2019 Activities

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140
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To the General Assembly of Finansal Kiralama, Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği

A. Audit of the consolidated financial statements

1. Our opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Finansal Kiralama, Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği (the 
“Association”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements comprising a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group as at 
31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Turkish Financial 
Reporting Standards (“TFRS”).

2. Basis for opinion

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the Standards on Independent Auditing (the “SIA”) that are part of Turkish Standards on 
Auditing issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (the “POA”). Our responsibilities under these 
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of 
our report. We hereby declare that we are independent of the Group in accordance with the Ethical Rules for Independent Auditors 
(the “Ethical Rules”) and the ethical requirements regarding independent audit in regulations issued by POA that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Ethical Rules 
and regulations. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during the independent audit provides a sufficient and 
appropriate basis for our opinion.

3. Key audit matters

It was decided that we did not have a key audit matter to report in our report.

4. Other matters

The consolidated financial statements of the Association as of 31 December 2018 and for the year then ended were audited by 
another audit firm whose audit report dated 15 March 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

5. Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial statements

The Group management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with TFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

6. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows:

Our aim is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an independent auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
expressed as a result of an independent audit conducted in accordance with SIA is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee 
that a material misstatement will always be detected. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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As part of an independent audit conducted in accordance with SIA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
 - Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

 - Assess the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

 - Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

 - Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our independent auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

 - Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

 - Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

B. Other responsibilities arising from regulatory requirements

1. No matter has come to our attention that is significant according to subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of Turkish Commercial Code 
(“TCC”) No. 6102 and that causes us to believe that the Group’s bookkeeping activities concerning the period from 1 January to 
31 December 2019 period are not in compliance with the TCC and provisions of the Association’s articles of association related to 
financial reporting.

2. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted the necessary explanations to us 
and provided the documents required within the context of our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği and Subsidiaries

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”))

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Current period Prior period
Audited Audited

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 17,510,669 9,766,188
Trade receivables 4 504,482 129,747
Other receivables 5 84,518 -
Current tax assets 9 18,061 120,242
Other current assets 6 35,244 100,597

Total current assets 18,152,974 10,116,774

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 7 230,253 380,050
Intangible assets 8 2,083,955 1,239,542
Deferred tax asset 13 15,123 9,313
Other non-current assets 8,617 804

 
Total non-current assets 2,337,948 1,629,709
 
Total assets 20,490,922 11,746,483

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019
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Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği and Subsidiaries

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”))

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Current period Prior period
Audited Audited

Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities

Trade payables 10 734,949 529,634
Employee termination benefits obligations 11 533,929 225,374
Deferred income 12 3,497,500 2,268,667
Current provisions for employee termination benefits 11 142,724 162,441
Tax payables 13 65,454 25,282
Other current liabilities 14 53,980 207,643

Total current liabilities 5,028,536 3,419,041

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 13 8,104 6,107
Provisions for long-term employee benefits 11 371,851 282,423
   
Total non-current liabilities 379,955 288,530
 
Total liabilities 5,408,491 3,707,571

Shareholders’ equity

Other accumulated expenses that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss (149,096) (83,976)

- Defined benefit plans re-measurement (losses)/gains (149,096) (83,976)
Legal Reserves 15,000 15,000
Retained earnings 8,107,888 9,550,751
Net period income/(loss) 7,108,639 (1,442,863)
   
Total equity 15,082,431 8,038,912

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 20,490,922 11,746,483

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019



82

The Association of Financial Institutions Annual Report 2019

Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği and Subsidiaries

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”))

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

Current period Prior period
Audited

January 1 -
31 December 2019

Audited
January 1 -

31 December 2018

Profit or loss
Sales 15 24,212,742 14,204,152
Cost of sales (-) 15 (5,024,559) (4,610,872)

 
Gross profit 15 19,188,183 9,593,280

General administrative expenses (-) 16 (13,556,607) (12,096,125)
Other operating income 203,398 117,609
Other operating expense (-) 17 (131,878) (831,535)
   
Operating profit 5,703,096 (3,216,771)

Financial income 18 1,817,460 2,211,597
Financial expense (-) 19 (35,137) (265,780)

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations 7,485,419 (1,270,954)

- Tax expense for the period 13 (382,232) (180,732)
- Deferred tax income 13 5,452 8,823

Net period income 7,108,639 (1,442,863)

Other comprehensive income or loss
Will not be reclassified to income or loss
- Actuarial income/(loss) 11 (63,481) (30,322)
- Deferred income/(expense) 13 (1,639) (2,992)

Other comprehensive income or loss (65,120) (33,314)

Total comprehensive income or loss 7,043,519 (1,476,177)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and  
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2019
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Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği and Subsidiaries

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”))

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Other comprehensive 
income and expenses 

not to be reclassified to 
profit or loss

Defined benefit plans 
remeasurement losses

Legal 
reserves

Net Profit/
(Loss)

Retained 
Earning

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity
Balance as of January 1, 2018 (50,662) - (1,039,365) 10,605,116 9,515,089

Transfers - 15,000 1,039,365 (1,054,365) -
Net income/(loss) for the period - - (1,442,863) - (1,442,863)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (33,314) - - - (33,314)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) (33,314) - (1,442,863) - (1,476,177)
 
Balance as of December 31, 2018 (83,976) 15,000 (1,442,863) 9,550,751 8,038,912

Balance as of January 1, 2019 (83,976) 15,000 (1,442,863) 9,550,751 8,038,912

Transfers - - 1,442,863 (1,442,863) -
Net income/(loss) for the period - - 7,108,639 - 7,108,638
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (65,120) - - - (65,120)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (65,120) - 7,108,639 - 7,043,519
 
Balance as of December 31, 2019 (149,096) 15,000 7,108,639 8,107,888 15,082,431

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019



84

The Association of Financial Institutions Annual Report 2019

Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği and Subsidiaries

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”))

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Current period Prior period
Audited Audited

1 January- 1 January-
Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net profit/(loss) for the year 7,108,639 (1,442,863)

Adjustments for the reconciliation of net profit and net cash 
gained from operating activities:

Entrance fees and accrued shareholding costs 12 1,228,833 362,667
Depreciation and amortization 7, 8 406,463 637,624
Tax adjustments 13 200,381 171,909
Provision for employee termination benefits 11 183,215 53,058
Provision for unused vacation liability 11 (19,717) 67,245
Provision for doubtful receivables 4 (255,898) (15,250)
Interest income 18 (1,817,460) (2,120,001)
   
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in 
operating assets and liabilities 7,034,456 (2,285,611)

Changes in trade receivables, other receivables 4 (203,355) 153,186
Changes in other current assets 6 65,351 (82,421)
Changes in other non current assets (7,813) 7,284
Changes in trade payables 10 205,315 37,291
Changes in employee benefit obligations 11 308,555 7,119
Changes in other payables and other liabilities (301,019) (90,354)
Tax paid 13 (71,783) (377,696)
 
Net cash used from operating activities 7,029,707 (2,631,202)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 18 1,919,609 2,201,272
Cash flow from property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 
purchase 7, 8 (1,102,672) (198,025)

 
Cash flows from investing activities 816,937 2,003,247
 
Net cash/(used in) financing activities - -

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 7,846,644 (627,955)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3 9,645,492 10,273,447

Period-end cash and cash equivalents 3 17,492,136 9,645,492

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019
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Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği and Subsidiaries

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
As of 31 December 2019

1. GROUP’S ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Law No. 6361 on Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies (“Law”) Pursuant to Article 40, the Association of Financial Leasing, 
Factoring and Financing Companies (“FKB” or “Association”) is a public institution that has a legal entity and is a public institution 
established by the publication of its Status in the o”) in the Official Gazette on 25 July 2013. With the General Assembly meeting held 
on 5 July 2019, the new term Board of Directors was elected for 3 years and took over.

According to the law provisions, all financial leasing, factoring and financing companies that operate in Turkey, as of the date they 
receive permission to operate, have to join the Association within one month, comply with the provisions of the Statute, and must 
implement the decisions taken by the Association’s competent body.

To assist the realization of the objectives of the Association pursuant to the decisions of the Board of Directors dated 
7 January 2014, 2014/2, 2014/3 and 2014/4 and to established three commercial enterprises (subsidiary) with the following titles in 
accordance with the provisions of the Law, decided. 
1) Finansal Kiralama, Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği Finansal Kiralama İktisadi İşletmesi
2) Finansal Kiralama, Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği Ticaret Finansmanı İktisadi İşletmesi,
3) Finansal Kiralama, Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği İktisadi İşletmesi

Association and its subsidiaries together as the “Group” are operating in Turkey and located in Esentepe Mahallesi, Büyükdere 
Caddesi, Bahar Sokak, No:13 River Plaza Kat:18 Ofis No: 48-49 34394 Şişli, İstanbul, Türkiye. As of the balance sheet date the 
number of personnel of the Group is 22 (December 31, 2018: 22).

Associations’s subject of activity:

The Association is a professional institution that has a legal personality established in accordance with the Law and is a public 
institution.

Within the framework of free market economy and full competition principles and in line with regulation principles and rules of the 
industry, the aim of the Association is to defend the rights and interests of the companies to work for the sectors’ growth, trusted 
work and the development of relevant professions and raise the competitiveness.

The Association performs the following tasks to accomplish this aim:
a) Create policies for the development of sectors and relevant professions and take decisions, 
b) Determine the professional principles and standards that companies have to comply, 
c) To provide the companies to work in the unity, dignity and discipline that the profession requires according to the needs of the 

economy, by determining the principles and ethics of the profession,
d) Inform the companies about the decisions taken by relevant legislation and by the Agency and the measures,
e) Take the necessary measures to protect the competitive environment,
f) Represent the sectors in the country and abroad, to promote and to make efforts to enlighten the public on this issue,
g) Transfer the information which is collected through the economy, the financial sector and domestic and international 

developments in their system by monitoring; to its members and relevant persons,
ğ) Giving advices to official authorities and organizations about the issues of the companies and sectors,
h) Take decisions that will strengthen professional solidarity relations between the companies,
ı) Ensure the cooperation on joint projects between the members, 
i) Collect the companies’and sectors’ unconfidential statistics and announce to public,
k) Follow up the regulations related to the sectors and to publicize these regulations to companies,
l) Identify the principles to be followed in advertisements and announcements of the companies under the relevant legislation 
m) Follow up the implementation of the decisions and measures and decide to administrative penalty about the companies do not 

exactly comply with these totally and on time, within the context of the law,
n) Organize seminars symposiums, conferences and such education programs on issues related to industry,
o) Litigate about the common interests of the companies according to the Board of Directors’ decision,
p) Take the measures which are required to be taken by the Agency, 
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Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği and Subsidiaries

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
As of 31 December 2019

r) Determine the principles and procedures related to the registration of lease contracts to the special registry, by taking the 
relevant opinion of the Board, 

s) Consolidate the information about the assigned receivables including the invoice information of the factoring companies and 
banks with approval of the Association under the consideration of the Risk Center, determine the procedures and principles 
about sharing the information. 

t) Carry out other tasks given by the legislation

Finansal Kiralama, Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği Ticaret Finansmanı İktisadi İşletmesi was established on 27 
February, 2014. The Factoring Commercial Enterprise’s purpose and scope are as follows:

a) Making required investments in order to establish the system on which the information regarding transferred receivables 
including the data of invoices will be consolidated; as it is mentioned in article 43, titled as ‘Central Invoice Recording’, of Financial 
Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies Law numbered 6361; 

b) Making operating and personnel expenses for the system to be run on a regular basis,
c) Achieving service revenue related to the registration process that is performed in order for the system to operate in a well-

ordered manner by performing any kind of activity and collecting fees for them
d) Generating revenue via organizing training and consultancy activities like seminars and conferences about system operations,
e) Claiming extra fee, in case the information which is demanded by the Association members and banks is not provided in a full and 

timely manner, 
f) Providing revenue on books, magazines and all kind of publications related to Central Invoice Recording System,
g) Generating income via other activities performed according to the regulations to be published in accordance with the Financial 

Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies Law numbered 6361, Article 43 with the title Central Invoice Recording,
h) Investing the revenue collected as a result of its financial activities, and depositing the revenue to the bank accounts that are 

deemed appropriate, being authorized for such actions.
i) Acting as a private integrator within the scope of the Tax Procedure Law General Notification numbered 421.
j) Providing electronic invoice storage services under the Tax Procedure Law General Notification numbered 416, 421 and 424. 
k) Providing “e-Archives” service under the Tax Procedure Law General Notification numbered 433.
l) Manufacturing, developing, handling and reproducing software in every kind of physical and electronic atmosphere, trading 

of them and acting as a service provider for them which are electronic invoicing, electronic books, electronic invoice software 
derived from or an integrated part of mentioned software and the service packages consisting of this software,

m) Producing services on internet, communication medium and all kinds of informatics and exporting, importing domestically 
trading every kind of computer hardware, software whilst obeying the legislation.

n) Maintaining, repairing, modifying and leasing the mentioned hardware and software, performing activities for software 
development and licencing, importing, exporting and domestically trading the related hardware and software.

o) Servicing for establishing and operating of computer systems
p) Organizing, seminars, symposiums, conferences and such education and consulting services on issues related to the activities 

and services within the Factoring Commercial Enterprise and generating income for them.

Finansal Kiralama, Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği İktisadi İşletmesi was established on 24 March, 2014. The 
Commercial Enterprise’s purpose and scope are as follows:

a) To conduct activities related to the expansion and development of the financial leasing, factoring ve financing companies in 
Turkey,

b) Conducting and promoting studies and research regarding financial leasing, factoring and financing companies in order to 
provide highest level of service and quality, 

c) To make necessary investments for the establishment of the systems for certification, training, testing and evaluation of the 
creation and development of human resources of the sectors,

d) Making operational and personnel expenses for the system to be run on a regular basis,
e) To prepare and implement educational programs in order to increase the number of specialized staff in the sectors and to 

promote related sectors, 
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Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği and Subsidiaries

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
As of 31 December 2019

f) Organizing required promotions in order to ensure enhancing the sector image to the highest level, to publish books, magazines 
and brochures, preparing video band, CD, DVD etc., to take ads, to assume, import and sell the publication rights of related books, 
to make periodical and non-periodical publications, to organize seminars, symposiums, and conferences with technicality, to 
organize training courses towards the training of personnel working at member institution and other entities,

g) To organize various organizations, including dinner meetings to improve the feeling of social solidarity among employees of the 
Association’s member companies,

h) Engaging activities in the areas which focus on generating revenues from services within the area of its activity.

Finansal Kiralama, Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği Finansal Kiralama İktisadi İşletmesi was established on 27 
February, 2014. The Financial Leasing Commercial Enterprise’s purpose and scope are as follows: 

a. Making necessary investments according to Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies Law numbered 6361, Articles 
21 and 22 for the establishment of the system related to registration process,

b. Making operational and personnel expenses for the system to be run on a regular basis,
c. Performing all kind of activities in order to generate service revenue from registration process, 
d. Organizing trainings, conferences, publications and consulting activities regarding the registration process,
e. Investing the revenue collected as a result of financial activities and depositing the revenue to the bank accounts that are 

deemed appropriate, being authorized for such actions.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanations on basis of presentation

Declaration of conformity with applied accounting standards and TFRS

Group’s financial statements are prepared according to TFRS. TFRS’s include standards and comments published by Public Oversight, 
Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”) with the name of Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS”), Turkish Financial 
Reporting Standards (“TFRS”), TAS Comments and TFRS Comments. 

While financial statements use the 2016 TAS Taxonomy which is devoloped by POA based on the by the Board by the Board decision 
No. 30 dated 2 June 2016, developed on the basis of subparagraph (b) of Article 9 of the Decree Law No. 660 (“Decree”), 2016 TAS 
Taxonomy is updated on April 2019 in the frame of TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and TFRS 16 Leases and it is 
published under the name of 2019 TFRS Taxonomy in order to provide term coherence in the legislation and the Group has prepared 
its financial statements in accordance with 2019 TFRS Taxonomy. 

According to the Turkish Commercial Law No. 6102, among companies who are subject to independent audit, those who are not 
subject to apply TFRS by the Board Decision of POA about TAS Application can also prepare their financial statements according to 
TFRS. In this context, Association’s management preferred to prepare its financial statements for 31 December 2019 in accordance 
with TFRS.

The functional currency of the Group is Turkish Lira (TL).

Approval of consolidated financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements prepared related to the accounting period which end up on 

31 December 2019 have been approved by the Management of the Group on 17 February 2020 and will be submitted for approval in 
the first General Assembly that will take place. In the framework of the legislation, the Group’s authorized Boards and the regulatory 
institutions have the authority to alter the financial statements. 

Applied accounting standards

Group holds its legal books in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code no. 6102, tax legislation and the Uniform Chart of 
Accounts published by the Turkish Ministry of Finance. 
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Group is obliged to recognize all its transactions in line with their actual nature and arrange its financial statements on a timely, 
accurate, understandable, trustable and comparable manner and suitable for auditing, analysis and interpretation in a form and 
content meeting knowledge acquisition requirement in the framework of procedures and principles determined by Public Oversight, 
Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority.

In the preparation of the financial statements and footnotes, “Financial Statements and Examples Use Guide” principles has been 
used which was announced by the POA as of April 2019.

The financial statements are based on the Group’s legal records and represented with TL balances and they have been subjected to 
certain adjustments and classifications in order to properly present the position of the Association which have been published by 
the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards.

Group’s functional currency is Turkish Lira (“TL”).

Netting/Offset

With all kinds of significant financial amounts, even with similar characteristics, are presented separately in the financial statements 
Non significant amounts are material or shown in terms of consolidating as similar items. As a result of the transaction and to make 
the event the necessary offsetting these transactions and the net amount of the event or the presence of the monitoring over 
the amount after impairment losses are not considered as a violation of the rule of offsetting. The income earned as a result of the 
transactions in the normal course of business of the Group, is presented as net value provided with the clause of being appropriate 
with the nature of the transaction or event.

Basis of consolidation

The Association and the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements. 

Consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Association and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2019. 
The balance sheet prepared in accordance with the Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) of the subsidiaries has been 
consolidated with the Association’s balance sheet.

According to board decisions which are numbered 2014/2, 2014/3 and 2014/4 dated 7 January 2014, it is decided to establish 
commercial enterprises to provide continually income and assist for realization of the objectives for the Association of Financial 
Leasing, Factoring and Finance Companies in line with the law numbered 6361.

Field of activity of commercial enterprises, respectively are; 
 - To make the necessary investments for the establishment of related systems about registration process specified in articles 21 

and 22 of the relevant law and operates in accordance,
 - According to ‘Central Invoice Recording’ entitled under Article 43 at related law, to make required investments in order to establish 

the system that consolidate the information concerning the receivables (including invoice information) that are assigned to 
factoring companies and banks, 

 - To expand and develop activities of the Financial Leasing, Factoring and Finance Companies in Turkey.

Commercial enterprises consolidated are as follows:

Title Address (City/Country) Share Rate Paid in Capital

Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği 
Finansal Kiralama İktisadi İşletmesi (Finansal Kiralama 
İktisadi İşletmesi) Istanbul/Turkey 100% 100,000
Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği 
Ticaret Finansmanı İktisadi İşletmesi (Ticaret Finansmanı 
İktisadi İşletmesi) Istanbul/Turkey 100% 100,000
Finansal Kiralama Faktoring ve Finansman Şirketleri Birliği 
İktisadi İşletmesi (Birlik İktisadi İşletmesi) Istanbul/Turkey 100% 105,000

Total 305,000
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B. Summary of Significant Relevant Accounting Policies

a) Standards, amendments and interpretations applicable as at 1 January 2019: 

The Group has applied the new, revised standards and interpretations that are in compliance with TAS and TFRS and valid as of 
1 January 2019, related to its field of activity. 

 - TFRS 16, ‘Leases’; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted if 
TFRS 15’Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ is also applied. This standard replaces the current guidance in IAS 17 and is a 
far-reaching change in accounting by lessees in particular. Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a 
finance lease (on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). TFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease 
liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right of use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional 
exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. 
For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as 
well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the 
very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors and lessees. Under TFRS 16, 
a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration.

 - IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. This 
IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’, are applied where there is uncertainty 
over income tax treatments. The TFRS IC had clarified previously that IAS 12, not IAS 37 ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets’, applies to accounting for uncertain income tax treatments. IFRIC 23 explains how to recognise and measure 
deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment. An uncertain tax treatment 
is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainty over whether that treatment will be accepted by the tax 
authority. For example, a decision to claim a deduction for a specific expense or not to include a specific item of income in a tax 
return is an uncertain tax treatment if its acceptability is uncertain under tax law. IFRIC 23 applies to all aspects of income tax 
accounting where there is an uncertainty regarding the treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates.

 - Amendments to IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ on plan amendment, curtailment or settlement’; effective from annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. These amendments require an entity to:
 - use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the reminder of the period after a plan 

amendment, curtailment or settlement; and
 - recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that 

surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

b) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective as at 31 December 2019:

 - Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 on the definition of material; effective from Annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2020. These amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’, and IAS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in 
accounting estimates and errors’, and consequential amendments to other IFRSs:
i) use a consistent definition of materiality throughout IFRSs and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting; 
ii) clarify the explanation of the definition of material; and 
iii) incorporate some of the guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial information.

 - Amendments to IFRS 3 - definition of a business; effective from Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. This 
amendment revises the definition of a business. According to feedback received by the IASB, application of the current guidance is 
commonly thought to be too complex, and it results in too many transactions qualifying as business combinations.
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The Group considers that the implementation of the Standards and Interpretations above will not have a significant impact on the 
Group’s financial statements in the future.

The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below:

a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, time deposits and demand deposits at banks.

b) Financial instruments

Trade receivables and provision for doubtful receivables

Trade receivables for which the Group is not in a cash flow forecast for the foreseeable future are deleted from the asset. The 
provision for doubtful receivables is reserved for receivables whose collectibility is doubtful and for which it is unclear whether the 
receivables are worthless. The amount of the provision is the difference between the recorded value of the receipt and the possible 
amount of receivable. Collectable amount is the amortized cost of all cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees 
and collateral, discounted based on the original effective interest rate of the originated transaction.

If all or part of the doubtful receivable is collected, the amount collected is deducted from the provision for doubtful receivables and 
recorded in other operating income. Interest and other income from trading securities is also included into “Other income” in the 
income statement.

c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost value excluding accumulated depreciation and impairment. Depreciation on the 
property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line method according to their useful lives from the date of recognition or 
assembly of the related asset. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Years

Furnitures and fixtures 3-10
Leasehold improvements 4-5

Disposal of property, plant and equipment fixed assets or asset gain or loss arising on the difference between the sales proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset is included in the income statement. Further expenses are capitalised only if the expenses 
increase the future economic benefits. All other expenses are recognized in the comprehensive income report as expenses.

d) Intangible Assets

Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method 
are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a 
prospective basis.

Years

Rights 3-10
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e) Employee benefits

Employment termination benefits

In accordance with existing social legislation lump-sum termination indemnities are paid to each employee whose employment is 
terminated due to the retirement or dismissal. In the context of TAS 19 Employee benefits (“TAS 19”) mentioned type of payments 
are specified as defined retirement benefit plans.

The reserve has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future obligation of the Group that may arise from the 
retirement of the employees.

The liability is not funded as there is no funding requirement.

The Group accounts for employee termination benefits, vacation rights and other benefits to employees in accordance with “Turkish 
Accounting Standard for Employee Rights” (“TAS 19”). TAS 19 requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the 
Group’s obligations under defined benefit plans.

The discount rate for pension commitments consistent with the maturity period and will be used for the payment of commitments, 
is estimated liabilities denominated in currencies, according to the changing discount rate that has been used over the years 
regarding the calculation as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018. In line with a discount rate estimation for long-term 
inflation rate, the changing inflation rate has been used over the years.

The estimated rate of severance indemnity amounts that have not been paid as a result of on-demand departures and that have 
remained in the Group are also taken into consideration. It is assumed that, the rate of optional separation will be subject to past 
service period and to assume by calculating total retirement benefit obligation with making the analysis of past experience, 
expectations are reflected in the calculation of expected future demand separation. 

Accordingly, in actuarial calculations, the possibility of employees leave voluntarily is included in the calculation as decreasing rate 
whilst having increased past service period.

f) Shareholding charges, entrance fee and interest income/expense

Share of participation cost and entrance fee 

The entrance fee revenues consist of fees allocated to the budget by the companies for once and the amount is determined by the 
Board of the Association. The share of participation cost consist of the fees for the Association and sectoral costs in the budget 
and are determined by the Board of the Association and approved by the General Assembly. Unlike 2019, additional expense 
participation share was collected for JCR Avrasya Derecelendirme A.Ş share purchase.

Revenues are recorded according to giving the service, having the transfer of risks and benefits associated with the service, 
determination of the amount of revenue reliably and economic benefits associated with the transaction that are or will be probable 
to be taken over to flow to the Association on an accrual basis over the fair value. 

The entrance fees are reflected to income statement after the membership process is completed and the shares of participation 
cost are reflected regarding the following service period.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the income statement in the period to which they relate on an accrual basis.
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g) Taxes on income

The Association has exemption from the corporate tax and the value-added tax (“VAT”). However, the Association has obligation on 
stamp duty for papers issued in relation with its transactions. The subsidiaries are subject to corporate tax at 22%.

To be effective from 1 January 2006, in Turkey, whilst the corporate income is subject to corporate tax at 20%; according to the 
regulation numbered 7061, which is published in the Official Gazette dated 5 December 2017 and numbered 30261, the “Law on 
Amendments to Certain Tax Laws and Other Certain Laws” it is set at 22% to be applied to the corporate earnings of the tax years 2018, 
2019 and 2020. In addition, the Council of Ministers was authorized to reduce the rate of 22% to 20% (31 December 2018: 20%).

The temporary taxes are calculated and accrued quarterly in Turkey.

Tax losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable income for up to 5 years. But tax losses cannot be carried back to 
offset profits from previous periods.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definite agreement on tax assessments. Corporations file their tax returns within the 
25th of the fourth month following the close of the financial year to which they relate. Tax returns and the related accounting records 
might be changed within 5 years by the tax authorities.

h) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Currency 

Foreign currency valuations are recorded by calculation with the exchange rate of the period; foreign currency assets and liabilities 
are valued with the buying exchange rate declared by the Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey of the balance sheet date. Income 
and expenses resulting from translation of foreign currency items are included in the income statement for the period. 

i) Trade payables

Trade payables contain related goods and services billed or unbilled amounts, consist of debts having maturities of less than three 
months. 

j) Subsequent Events

Subsequent events cover any events which arise between the date of approval of the financial statements and the balance sheet 
date. even if they occurred after declaration of the net profit for the period or specific financial information is publicly disclosed. The 
Group adjusts its financial statements if such subsequent events require an adjustment to the financial statements.

k) Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities

Provisions are booked when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount 
of the obligation can be made. When the amount of the obligation cannot be estimated and an outflow of resources is not 
probable, it is considered that a “contingent” liability exists and it is disclosed in the related notes to the financial statements. As of 
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 the Group has no provision, contingent liabilities and assets.
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l) Related parties

a) A person or that person’s immediate family are considered as related party to the Group if the following conditions have been 
met:

Certain party,
(ii) If it has control or joint control over the Group,
(ii) If it has significant influence over the Group
(iii) In the case of being a member of the Group or the parent Association’s key management personnel

b) If any of the following conditions are present, the entity is considered as related party of the Group:
(i) Entity and Group are members of the same group 
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of 

which the other entity is a member).
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
(v) The entity has a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the 

Group. (If the Group itself has such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.)
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of 

the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Cash 2,431 4,244
Bank

- Demand deposits 52,055 53,276
- Time deposits 17,456,183 9,708,668

Total 17,510,669 9,766,188

As of 31 December 2019, the yearly weighted average interest rates of the TL deposits in the banks range between 7.5% 
and 23.75% (31 December 2018: 15% - 24%) and the accrued interest amount is TL 18,533 (31 December 2018: TL 120,696) 
The maturity dates of the TL deposits in the banks vary between 2 January 2020 and 31 January 2020 (31 December 2018: 
2 January 2019 - 19 January 2019).

As of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents of the Group are presented by deducting interest 
accruals from cash and cash equivalents:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Cash and cash equivalents 17,510,669 9,766,188
Minus (-): Interest accruals (18,533) (120,696)

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement 17,492,136 9,645,492
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4. TRADE RECEIVABLES

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Receivables from “MFKS” operations (**) 41,300 53,100
Receviables from factoring operations (Special Integration) 30,330 18,401
Other Factoring 590 -
Receivables from registration process (*) 121,542 35,166
Receivables from members (***) 310,720 23,080
Doubtful trade receivables 552,452 196,765
Provision for doubtful receivables (552,452) (196,765)

Total 504,482 129,747
(*) One of the entities subject to consolidation “Finansal Kiralama İktisadi İşletmesi”, performs registeration of domestic and foreign leasing contracts. As a result 
of cooperation with “Merkezi Kayıt Kuruluşu”, registeration process of leasing contracts are started being executed by “Finansal Kiralama İktisadi İşletmesi” since 
9 February 2015.
(**) Since 1 January 2015, “Ticaret Finansmanı İktisadi İşletmesi”with cooperation with “Kredi Kayıt Bürosu”, serves the Central Invoice Recording System (MFKS) by which 
Factoring Companies and banks aggregate invoice information about the receivables they assign. 
(***) Receivables from members are consists of receivables from Analiz Faktoring TL 158,898 and TL 97,000 are 100% provision according to 2019. In addition, according to 
MFKS receivables which is include TL 11,800 from Atak Faktoring and TL 8,850 Merkez Faktoring, are 100% provisions are reserved.

Provision for doubtful receivables as of 2019 is as follows:

2019 2018

Opening balance, 1 January (196,765) (181,515)
Provision on the current period (355,687) (15,250)

Ending balance, 31 December (552,452) (196,765)

5. OTHER RECEIVABLES

As of 31 December 2019, other receivables of the group is TL 84,518, which is contain receivables from tax office 
(31 December 2018: None).

6. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Prepaid insurance policies 23,930 12,738
Reverse charge VAT 9,575 81,073
Personnel health insurance 1,242 4,568
Advances given 497 1,134
Prepaid taxes and funds - 1,084

Total 35,244 100,597
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in tangible assets between 1 January - 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Furniture and 

fixtures
Leasehold 

improvement
Construction in 

progresss Total

Cost
Opening balance, January 1, 2019 718,194 1,420,231 - 2,138,425
Additions 53,297 - - 53,297
Disposals (-) (1,592) - - (1,592)
 
Closing balance as of 
December 31, 2019 769,899 1,420,231 - 2,190,130

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance, January 1, 2019 (476,439) (1,281,936) - (1,758,375)
Charge for the period (63,254) (138,248) - (201,502)
 
Closing balance as of 
December 31, 2019 (539,693) (1,420,184) - (1,959,877)

Net book value 230,206 47 - 230,253

Movements in property, plant and equipment between 1 January - 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Furniture and 

fixtures
Leasehold 

improvement
Construction in 

progresss Total

Cost
Opening balance, January 1, 2018 685,851 1,420,231 - 2,106,083
Additions 32,343 - - 32,342
 
Closing balance as of 
December 31, 2018 718,194 1,420,231 - 2,138,425

     
Accumulated depreciation      
Opening balance, January 1, 2018 (289,363) (997,146) - (1,286,509)
Charge for the period (187,076) (284,790) - (471,866)
       
Closing balance as of 
December 31, 2018 (476,439) (1,281,936) - (1,758,375)

Net book value 241,755 138,295 - 380,050

As of 31 December 2019, there is no pledge or blockage (31 December 2018: None.) Depreciation expenses are reflected in General 
Administrative Expenses and Costs of Sales accounts. 
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Movements in intangible assets between 1 January - 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Rights
Other 

 intangible assets Total

Cost
Opening balance, January 1, 2019 1,773,867 50,000 1,823,867
Additions 1,049,374 - 1,049,374

Closing balance as of December 31, 2019 2,823,241 50,000 2,873,241

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance, January 1, 2019 (559,325) (25,000) (584,325)
Charge for the period (194,961) (10,000) (204,961)

Closing balance as of December 31, 2019 (754,286) (35,000) (789,286)
 
Net book value 2,068,955 15,000 2,083,955

Movements in intangible assets between 1 January - 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Rights
Other  

intangible assets Total

Cost
Opening balance, January 1, 2018 1,608,184 50,000 1,658,184
Additions 165,682 - 165,682

 
Closing balance as of December 31, 2018 1,773,866 50,000 1,823,866

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance, January 1, 2018 (403,566) (15,000) (418,566)
Charge for the period (155,758) (10,000) (165,758)

Closing balance as of December 31, 2018 (559,324) (25,000) (584,324)
 
Net book value 1,214,542 25,000 1,239,542

As of 31 December 2019, there is no pledge or blockage (31 December 2018: None.) Amortisation expenses are reflected in General 
Administrative Expenses and Costs of Sales accounts. 

9. CURRENT PERIOD TAX ASSETS

As of 31 December 2019 the Group has TL 18,061 in taxable income account (31 December 2018: TL 120,242).
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10. TRADE PAYABLES

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Trade payables to third parties 734,949 529,634

Total 734,949 529,634

Trade payables to non-related parties, consist of; technical services, advertising, corporate communications, vendor liabilities and 
balances owed to the Merkezi Kayıt Kuruluşu. (Regarding 21st and 22nd Articles of Law No. 6361, “Finansal Kiralama İktisadi İşletmesi” 
executes the registrations of domestic and cross border leasing aggreements). Since 9 February 2015, as a result of cooperation 
with Merkezi Kayıt Kuruluşu, the registration process for leasing contracts are started to be executed by “Finansal Kiralama İktisadi 
İşletmesi” Trade payables’ maturities are less than 30 days.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group has TL 282,940 part, classified under other payables, consists of debts sourcing from contracts 
concluded in scope of realization of system and infrastructure establishment which shall be used by the software developed 
towards aggregation, recording, inquiring and reporting of invoice information and other information and/or documents related to 
receivables transferred in scope of the Law by factoring companies and banks in scope of contracts made with Kredi Kayıt Bürosu; 
TL 177,000 part consists of debt sourcing from additional software development. (31 December 2018: TL 235,783).

11. LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS RELATED TO EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Liabilities related to employee benefits consist of social security premiums payable, income tax paid on behalf of employees; 
provisions for long-term benefits provided to employees consist of reserve for employment termination benefits.

The indemnities payable amounts to one month salary for each term of service and the maximum amount is calculated on the 
TL 6,730.15 for 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: TL 5,434.42).

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Provision for employement termination benefits 371,851 282,423
 

Total 371,851 282,423

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Unused vacation provision 142,724 162,441
 

Total 142,724 162,441

The following actuarial assumptions are used in the calculation of the total liability at the balance sheet date:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Discount rate 4.47% 4.50%
Inflation rate 7.50% 7.00%
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The movement of severance pay for 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

  2019 2018

Opening balance (1 January) 282,423 199,043
Interest cost 64,230 16,036
Service cost 90,320 37,022
Actuarial (gain)/loss (65,122) 30,322
   
Closing balance (31 December) 371,851 282,423

The movement of unused vacation provision for 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

  2019 2018

Opening balance (1 January) 162,441 111,192
Vacation provision for the current period (19,717) 51,249
   
Closing balance (31 December) 142,724 162,441

12. DEFERRED INCOME

As of 31 December 2019, charges of shareholding and entrance fees which have been collected from the members are recorded 
as income for the period of 1 January - 31 December 2019 and the portion of the following years’ amounting to TL 3,497,500 was 
accounted as deferred income (31 December 2018: TL 2,268,667).

13. TAX AND LIABILITIES PAYABLE

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Corporate tax provision 382,232 180,732
Advance corporate tax (334,839) (275,692)

 
Total 47,393 (94,960)

Deferred tax asset/(liability), net

Taxable  
temporary differences

Deferred  
tax asset/(liability)

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Depreciation correction of property, plant 
and equipment and intangible assets 54,364 (9,362) 11,962 (1,872)
Provisions for severance pay 8,136 23,422 1,790 4,684
Provisions for accumulated leave 6,233 12,271 1,371 2,700
Accumulated financial losses - 17,277 - 3,801

Deferred tax asset/(liability) 68,733 43,608 15,123 9,313
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Deferred tax liability

Taxable  
temporary differences

Deferred  
tax asset/(liability)

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Depreciation correction of property, plant 
and equipment and intangible assets (141,336) (78,061) (31,095) (15,612)
Provision for severance pay 102,875 42,623 22,633 8,525
Unused vacation liability 1,625 4,457 358 980

Deferred tax liability (36,836) (30,981) (8,104) (6,107)

Deferred tax assets/liabilities, net

Taxable  
temporary differences

Deffered  
tax asset/(liability)

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Depreciation correction of property, plant 
and equipment and intangible assets (86,972) (87,423) (19,133) (17,484)
Provision for severance pay 111,011 66,045 24,423 13,209
Provision for accumulated leave 7,858 16,728 1,729 3,680
Accumulated financial losses - 17,277 - 3,801

   
Deferred tax assets/liabilities, net 31,897 12,627 7,019 3,206

Reconciliation of tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is as follows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Profit/(loss) before tax 7,485,419 (1,270,954)
Tax amount due to profit/(loss) before tax (1,646,792) 279,610
Tax exempt profit 1,233,846 (287,961)
Accumulated financial losses not subject to deferred tax 10,555 6,098
Non-deductible expenses (35,341) (169,656)
Deferred tax expenses (3,801) -
Additional discounts’ effect 64,752 -

Total (376,780) (171,909)

The movement of deferred tax for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is as follows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Opening balance 3,206 (2,625)
Accounted on income statement 5,452 8,823
Accounted on shareholders’ equity (1,639) (2,992)

Total deferred tax liability 7,019 3,206
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14. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities consist of taxes and funds payable TL 41,426 and other liabilities TL 12,734 value added tax paid as 
responsible and expense accrual items. (31 December 2018: Other current liabilities consist of taxes and funds payable TL 147,443 
and other liabilities TL 60,200).

15. SALES AND COST OF SALES

1 January -
31 December 2019

1 January -
31 December 2018

Association additional participation share costs 5,727,420 -
Association participation share costs 5,656,251 4,425,584
“MFKS”, “TZFS” and private integrator income (*) 5,436,764 4,616,218
Domestic registration fee income 3,133,900 2,580,290
Factoring company participations share costs 1,512,666 796,250
Financing company participations share cost 1,204,000 849,333
Financial leasing participations share cost 1,041,666 398,000
Education expenses 306,475 522,477
Association entrance fee 160,000 -
Foreign registration fee income 34,000 16,000

Total 24,213,142 14,204,152

Sales returns (-) 400 -

Net Sales 24,212,742 14,204,152

Cost of sales (-) (5,024,559) (4,610,872)

Gross profit 19,188,183 9,593,280
(*) “MFKS” revenues, as Central Invoice Recording and “TZFS” revenues, as Trade Chain Finance Expense.
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16. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

 
1 January -

31 December 2019
1 January -

31 December 2018
 
Personnel expenses (8,149,686) (6,057,360)
Rent expenses (1,578,679) (1,593,232)
Consultancy and audit expenses (797,340) (875,751)
General office expenses (451,298) (412,832)
Travel expenses (391,955) (252,487)
Sponsorships (*) (354,000) -
Outsourced benefits and services (342,727) (333,283)
Conference and organization expenses (264,447) (160,854)
Depreciation and amortization charges (239,988) (424,151)
Promotion and advertising expenses (216,729) (1,073,559)
Banks’ withholding deductions (180,775) (143,746)
Representation and hospitality expenses (132,305) (117,662)
Stoppage (115,062) -
Membership fees (108,151) (83,974)
Stamp tax (64,729) (25,545)
Conference expense (FCI etc) (38,000) (462,996)
Accounting costs (37,171) (32,750)
Donation and aid expenses (30,631) (100)
Taxes and other legal duties (54) (305)
Other expenses (62,880) (45,538)

Total (13,556,607) (12,096,125)
(*) Presidential Finance Office Financial Perception Survey

17. OTHER OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

 
1 January -

31 December 2019
1 January -

31 December 2018

Provision expense (109,567) (90,615)
Travel expenses (13,817) (195,383)
Advertisement design expense (5,909) (121,202)
Withholding tax (1,041) (111,014)
Anadolu Tour - (200,132)
Leaseurope membership expense - (83,830)
Organization expense - (23,748)
Representation expense - (5,501)
Donation expense - (100)
Other expense (1,544) (10)

Total (131,878) (831,535)
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18. FINANCIAL INCOME

Financial income consists of interest income from deposits amounting to TL 1,817,460 that consists of interest accrual income 
amounting to TL 18,533. Interest income includes, also exchange profit to TL 120,696 (31 December 2018: TL 1,944,039 interest 
income, foreign exchange gain amounting to TL 267,558, interest accrual income amounting to TL 120,696). In addition, as of 
31 December 2019, financial income includes exchange profit amount to TL 32,009.

19. FINANCIAL EXPENSE

Financial expenses consist of commission (bank expenses) expenses amounting to TL 2,442 and foreign exchange difference 
expenses amounting to TL 32,695 (31 December 2018: commission expenses amounting to TL 6,270 (bank expenses) and foreign 
exchange difference expenses amounting to TL 259,510).

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 the Group has no related party transactions and balances. 

There are no compensations to key management personnel as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management objectives and principles

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in debt and equity market prices, 
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability 
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

Credit risk

Having the financial instruments carries out an element of risk that the counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of the 
agreements. Group Management front these risks by limiting the aggregate risk to any individual counterparty and also in case, by 
obtaining collaterals. Group’s collection risk arises mainly from receivables from members.

As of 31 December 2019
Other

Receivables
Trade

Receivables
Deposits 

at bank
Financial

investments

Maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 
(A+B+C+D+E) (1) - 504,482 17,508,238 -
- The part of maximum risk guarantee with collateral or etc (2) - - - -
A. Net book value of financial assets that are neither past due 

nor impaired the net book value - 504,482 17,508,238 -
B. Having renegotiated conditions otherwise due to the 

carrying amount of financial assets accepted as past due or 
impaired - - - -

C. Net book value of financial assets that are past due but not 
impaired the net book value - - - -

- The part of net values under guarantee with collateral. - - - -
D. Net book value of financial assets that are impaired the net 

book value - 552,452 - -
- Past due (gross carrying amount) - (552,452) - -
- Impairment (-) - - - -
- The part of net values under guarantee with collateral. - - - -
- Not past due (gross carrying amount) - - - -
- Impairment (-) - - - -
- The part of net values under guarantee with collateral. - - - -

E. Off-balance sheet items with credit risk - - - -
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As of 31 December 2018 
Other

Receivables
Trade

Receivables
Deposits 

at bank
Financial

investments

Maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 
(A+B+C+D+E) (1) - 129,747 9,761,944 -
- The part of maximum risk guarantee with collateral or etc (2) - - - -
A. Net book value of financial assets that are neither past due 

nor impaired the net book value 129,747 9,761,944
B. Having renegotiated conditions otherwise due to the 

carrying amount of financial assets accepted as past due or 
impaired - - - -

C. Net book value of financial assets that are past due but not 
impaired the net book value - - - -

- The part of net values under guarantee with collateral. - - - -
D. Net book value of financial assets that are impaired the net 

book value - 196,765 - -
- Past due (gross carrying amount) - (196,765) - -
- Impairment (-) - - - -
- The part of net values under guarantee with collateral. - - - -
- Not past due (gross carrying amount) - - - -
- Impairment (-) - - - -
- The part of net values under guarantee with collateral. - - - -

E. Off-balance sheet items with credit risk - - - -

Liquidity risk

The risk of funding of existing and prospective debt requirements is managed by arranging sustainable accessibility to sufficient 
number of high-qualified lenders.

Prudent liquidity risk management refers to the ability to hold sufficient cash and securities, the availability of adequate utilizing 
funding sources and credit transactions, and the ability to close market positions.

The table below shows the Group’s distribution of non-derivative financial liabilities’ maturity profile as of 31 December 2019 and 
31 December 2018:
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December 31, 2019

Maturities in accordance with 
agreement

Book 
values

Total cash 
outflow

in accordance 
with agreement 

(=I+II+III)
Less than

3 months (I)
Between 3-12 

months (II)
Between

1-5 years (III)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 734,949 734,949 734,949 - -

Total 734,949 734,949 734,949 - -

December 31, 2018

Maturities in accordance with 
agreement

Book 
values

Total cash 
outflow

in accordance 
with agreement 

(=I+II+III)
Less than

3 months (I)
Between 3-12 

months (II)
Between

1-5 years (III)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 529,634 529,634 529,634 - -

Total 529,634 529,634 529,634 - -

Interest rate risk

The Group has no interest rate risk as of 31 December 2019 since it has no asset with fleible interest. (31 December 2018: None).

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk due to exchanging of the foreign currency assets and liabilites amounts to TL. The 
Group follows balanced foreign exchange policy in order to reduce its foreign currency risk.

As of 31 December 2019 the Group has no foreign currency balance and was not exposed to exchange rate risk (31 December 2018: 
None).

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS FOLLOWING THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

Share Transfer Contract regarding 850,500 registered shares of JCR Avrasya Derecelendirme A.Ş which represents 85.05% of the 
total shares, has been organized in Istanbul, Turkey on 28 November 2019 and signed by other buyers including Association. The 
total number of shares subject to the Association within the total transfer is 59,999 and the share ratio is 6%, and the transfer fee 
to be paid is TL 5,788,185.91. According to the contract, 75% of the share transfer price will be paid to the seller by the buyers on 
the closing date and the remaining 25% after six months. (Closing protocol date: 17 January 2020 and TL 4,341,139.43 was paid by 
the Association on the related date.) Association has received an approval for the purchase of shares by holding an Extraordinary 
General Assembly Meeting on 26 September 2019.

23. OTHER ISSUES THAT HAVE SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE BALANCE SHEET OR THAT ARE AMBIGUOUS AND/OR OPEN TO 
INTERPRETATION AND REQUIRE CLARIFICATION:

None.

Individual independent audit reports of our Institution and Commercial Enterprises are available on our website and can be accessed via the link below:
https://www.fkb.org.tr/reports-and-publications/reports/members-audit-reports/
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